
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

To: The Chair and Members of the 
Cabinet

(See below)

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon 
EX2 4QD

Your ref : Date : 6 November 2018 Email: karen.strahan@devon.gov.uk
Our ref : Please ask for : Karen Strahan, 01392 382264

CABINET

Wednesday, 14th November, 2018

A meeting of the Cabinet is to be held on the above date at 10.30 am in the Committee Suite - County 
Hall to consider the following matters.

P NORREY
Chief Executive

A G E N D A

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Minutes 

Minutes of the meeting held on 10th October 2018 (previously circulated).

3 Items Requiring Urgent Attention 

Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as matters of urgency.

4 Announcements 

5 Petitions 

6 Question(s) from Members of the Council 

FRAMEWORK DECISION

NIL



KEY DECISIONS

7 Sufficiency Strategy (Children's Services) (Pages 1 - 50)

Report of the Chief Officer for Children’s Services (CS/18/39), on a sufficiency strategy for 
placements and services for children in care, care leavers and disabled children, attached.

An Impact Assessment is also attached for the attention of Members at this meeting.

Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

8 Budget Monitoring: Month 6 (Pages 51 - 56)

Report of the County Treasurer (CT/18/09) on the budget monitoring position at month 6, attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

MATTERS REFERRED

9 Notice(s) of Motion (Referred from Council 4 October 2018) (Pages 57 - 60)

The following Notices of Motion submitted to the County Council have been referred to the Cabinet 
in accordance with Standing Order 8(2) to make a recommendation back to the Council.

The Report of the County Solicitor (CSO/18/32) on the Notices of Motion referred to the Cabinet by 
the County Council on 4 October 2018, incorporating relevant briefing notes to facilitate the 
Cabinet’s discussion of the matters raised is attached. 

(a) Devon and Cornwall Police and Dorset Police Merger - Councillor Atkinson;
(b) Bed Poverty – Councillor Hannaford.

STANDING ITEMS

10 Question(s) from Members of the Public 

11 Minutes (Pages 61 - 64)

Minutes of the bodies shown below are circulated herewith for information or endorsement as indicated 
therein: 

 Devon Authorities Strategic Waste Committee – 17 October 2018

[NB: Minutes of County Council Committees are published on the Council’s Website: 
Minutes of the Devon Education (Schools) Forum:   
Minutes of the South West Waste Partnership 
Minutes of the Devon & Cornwall Police & Crime Panel

12 Delegated Action/Urgent Matters (Pages 65 - 66)

The Registers of Decisions taken by Members under the urgency provisions or delegated powers 
will be available for inspection at the meeting in line with the Council’s Constitution and Regulation 
13 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012.  A summary of such decisions taken since the last meeting is 
attached. 

http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=235
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FieListMeetings.aspx%3FCId%3D888%26amp%3BYear%3D0
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FmgCommitteeDetails.aspx%3FID%3D1051


13 Forward Plan (Pages 67 - 74)

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the Cabinet is requested to review the list of 
forthcoming business (previously circulated) and to determine which items are to be defined as key 
and/or framework decisions and included in the Plan from the date of this meeting. 

[NB: The Forward Plan is available on the Council's website at: 
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=133&RD=0&bcr=1 ]

PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

NIL

Notice of all items listed above have been included in the Council’s Forward Plan for the required period, 
unless otherwise indicated. The Forward Plan is published on the County Council's website.
Notice of the decisions taken by the Cabinet will be sent by email to all Members of the Council within 2 
working days of their being made and will, in the case of key decisions, come into force 5 working days after 
that date unless 'called-in' or referred back in line with the provisions of the Council's Constitution. The 
Minutes of this meeting will be published on the Council's website, as indicated below, as soon as possible.
Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be treated 
accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s).
Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to 
return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=133&RD=0&bcr=1
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=133&RD=0&bcr=1


Membership 
Councillors J Hart (Chair), S Barker, R Croad, A Davis, R Gilbert, S Hughes, A Leadbetter, J McInnes and 
B Parsons
Cabinet Member Remits
Councillors Hart (Policy, Corporate and Asset Management), Barker (Resources), Croad (Community, Public 
Health, Transportation & Environmental Services), Davis (Infrastructure Development & Waste), R Gilbert 
(Economy & Skills) S Hughes (Highway Management), Leadbetter (Adult Social Care & Health Services), 
McInnes (Children’s Services & Schools) and Parsons (Organisational Development & Digital Transformation)
Declaration of Interests
Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at this 
meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect the Council’s / Cabinet Forward Plan or any Reports or Background Papers 
relating to any item on this agenda should contact Karen Strahan, 01392 382264. The Forward Plan and the 
Agenda and Minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website and can also be accessed via 
the Modern.Gov app, available from the usual stores.

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the ‘Democracy 
Centre’ on the County Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any 
confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more 
information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are 
excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chair.  Any filming 
must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional 
lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any 
member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed.  As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film 
proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those 
present may be made aware that is happening. 

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting.  An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.  For information on Wi-Fi availability at other locations, 
please contact the Officer identified above.
Questions to the Cabinet / Public Participation
A Member of the Council may ask the Leader of the Council or the appropriate Cabinet Member a question 
about any subject for which the Leader or Cabinet Member has responsibility. 
Any member of the public resident in the administrative area of the county of Devon may also ask the Leader a 
question upon a matter which, in every case, relates to the functions of the Council.  Questions must be 
delivered to the Office of the Chief Executive Directorate by 12 noon on the fourth working day before the date 
of the meeting. The name of the person asking the question will be recorded in the minutes. For further 
information please contact Karen Strahan on 01392 382264 or look at our website
Emergencies 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following 
the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect 
personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
Mobile Phones 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another 
format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other languages), 
please contact the Information Centre on 01392 380101 or 
email to: centre@devon.gov.uk or write to the Democratic and 
Scrutiny Secretariat at County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.

Induction loop system available

http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
http://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/
mailto:centre@devon.gov.uk


NOTES FOR VISITORS
All visitors to County Hall, including visitors to the Committee Suite and the Coaver Club conference and meeting rooms 
are requested to report to Main Reception on arrival.  If visitors have any specific requirements or needs they should 
contact County Hall reception on 01392 382504 beforehand. Further information about how to get here can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/. Please note that visitor car parking on campus is limited and space 
cannot be guaranteed. Where possible, we encourage visitors to travel to County Hall by other means.

SatNav – Postcode EX2 4QD

Walking and Cycling Facilities
County Hall is a pleasant twenty minute walk from Exeter City Centre. Exeter is also one of six National Cycle 
demonstration towns and has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes – a map can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/. Cycle stands are outside County Hall Main Reception and Lucombe House 

Access to County Hall and Public Transport Links
Bus Services K, J, T and S operate from the High Street to County Hall (Topsham Road).  To return to the High Street 
use Services K, J, T and R.  Local Services to and from Dawlish, Teignmouth, Newton Abbot, Exmouth, Plymouth and 
Torbay all stop in Barrack Road which is a 5 minute walk from County Hall. Park and Ride Services operate from Sowton, 
Marsh Barton and Honiton Road with bus services direct to the High Street. 

The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High Street) and St David’s and St Thomas’s 
both of which have regular bus services to the High Street. Bus Service H (which runs from St David’s Station to the High 
Street) continues and stops in Wonford Road (at the top of Matford Lane shown on the map) a 2/3 minute walk from 
County Hall, en route to the RD&E Hospital (approximately a 10 minutes walk from County Hall, through Gras Lawn on 
Barrack Road).

Car Sharing
Carsharing allows people to benefit from the convenience of the car, whilst alleviating the associated problems of 
congestion and pollution.  For more information see: https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon. 

Car Parking and Security
There is a pay and display car park, exclusively for the use of visitors, entered via Topsham Road.  Current charges are: 
Up to 30 minutes – free; 1 hour - £1.10; 2 hours - £2.20; 4 hours - £4.40; 8 hours - £7. Please note that County Hall 
reception staff are not able to provide change for the parking meters.

As indicated above, parking cannot be guaranteed and visitors should allow themselves enough time to find alternative 
parking if necessary.  Public car parking can be found at the Cathedral Quay or Magdalen Road Car Parks (approx. 20 
minutes walk). There are two disabled parking bays within the visitor car park. Additional disabled parking bays are 
available in the staff car park. These can be accessed via the intercom at the entrance barrier to the staff car park.

        NB                                 Denotes bus stops

Fire/Emergency Instructions
In the event of a fire or other emergency please note the following instructions. If you discover a fire, immediately inform 
the nearest member of staff and/or operate the nearest fire alarm. On hearing a fire alarm leave the building by the 
nearest available exit.  The County Hall Stewardesses will help direct you. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and 
do not use the lifts.  Assemble either on the cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car 
park behind Bellair, as shown on the site map above. Please remain at the assembly point until you receive further 
instructions.  Do not re-enter the building without being told to do so.

First Aid
Contact Main Reception (extension 2504) for a trained first aider. 

A J

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/
https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon




1

CS/18/39
Cabinet 

14th November 2018 

Children’s Services Sufficiency Strategy for Placements and Services for Children in 
Care, Care Leavers & Disabled Children. 

Report of the Chief Officer Children’s Services 

Recommendations: -

That Cabinet: -
a) Welcome and endorse the Children’s Services Sufficiency Strategy for Placements 

and Services for Children in Care, Care Leavers & Disabled Children and agree 
arrangements for this report to be published on the Council’s website. 

b) Agree to the commissioning intentions set out in the strategy and for contract award 
decisions to be undertaken through a delegated decision by the Chief Officer for 
Childrens Services in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services 
and Schools for Devon County Council for the following contracts: - for Residential 
Childrens Home Framework, Supported Living Options Framework, Residential Block 
Contract and Residential Short Breaks Contract.

1. Introduction

1.1 As corporate parents, Devon County Council is committed to ensuring children and 
young people in care achieve the best possible outcomes and are well prepared and 
supported to step confidently into adulthood with the support they need. Key to this is 
that when they cannot remain within their family, children and young people are 
provided with permanence and stability in care in settings which meet their changing 
needs over time.

1.2 We know from research that maintaining family ties, friendships and education, 
wherever possible, is crucial and significantly impacts on the likelihood of achieving 
positive outcomes for children and young people in care. Local provision also makes it 
easier to engage the full range of local partners in the multi-disciplinary arrangements 
that are essential to achieving good outcomes.

2. Background 

2.1 Section 22G of the Children Act (1989) sets out a ‘sufficiency’ duty for Local Authorities. 
The Children Act (2008) defines sufficiency as, “a whole system approach which delivers 
early intervention and preventative work to help support children and their families where 
possible, as well as providing better services for children if they do become looked after. 
For those who are looked after, Local Authorities and their Children’s Trust partners 
should seek to secure a number of providers and a range of services, with the aim of 
meeting the wide-ranging needs of looked after children and young people within their 
local area.”

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Cabinet (and confirmation under the provisions of the 
Council's Constitution) before taking effect.

Page 1

Agenda Item 7



2

2.2 Local Authorities are required to take steps to secure, so far as is reasonably practicable, 
sufficient accommodation for children in care within their local area. In 2010, the 
Statutory Guidance for the Sufficiency Duty was issued. This guidance is explicit in 
placing a duty on Local Authorities to act strategically to address gaps in provision by 
ensuring that they include, in relevant commissioning strategies, their plans for meeting 
the sufficiency duty.

2.3 Sufficiency is approached in collaboration with our partners across the area, including 
our Peninsula Commissioning Partners and other bordering authorities, alongside our 
local response to national priorities that support different approaches to supporting 
children in care such as the NHS England demonstrator for children in care with mental 
health issues through Integrated Personal Commissioning (IPC).

2.4 A sufficiency strategy for placements and services for children in care, care leavers and 
disabled children ( Sufficiency Strategy) (Appendix 1) has been produced which is 
informed by these principles and outlines how we will ensure that children and young 
people who need to be in care can grow up in high quality provision that is well matched 
to and effectively meets their immediate and long-term needs and provides them with 
stability and permanence at the earliest opportunity. 

2.5 This sufficiency strategy also describes Devon’s ambitions and how we will achieve the 
best for our children and young people in care, disabled children and care leavers in light 
of our understanding of their needs, now and in the future and of local provision. It links 
to the Council’s wider strategy for children in care, which also sets out Devon’s 
Corporate Parenting arrangements and position on other significant areas, such as how 
we achieve permanence for our children in care and meet the needs of care leavers.

3. Developing the Sufficiency Strategy 

3.1 We have been listening to our Children in Care and working with providers and 
practitioners to determine the priorities for the sufficiency strategy.  A stage of further 
engagement was undertaken with the final draft of the strategy during September and 
October 2018 to allow us to test if the priorities we have set out address the issues that 
children and young people have been raised with us. At a partnership level we have 
shared the strategy with the Joint Commissioning Group of the Devon Children and 
Families Partnership and the Peninsula Commissioning Board. Providers have also been 
invited to test the commissioning intentions set out within the strategy.  

3.2 The strategy was reviewed as part of a Scrutiny Liaison Autumn Briefing session with 
members in October 2018.  

3.3 The Children’s Services Sufficiency Strategy which is brought before Cabinet for 
endorsement, encapsulates key findings from data concerning services and placements 
for children in care, care leavers and disabled children relating to 2017/18 and aims to 
identify what is working well and commissioning intentions and priorities for development 
going forward. It is intended that this strategy be reviewed and refreshed on an annual 
basis. 

4. Financial Considerations

4.1 The Sufficiency Strategy sets commissioning intentions for 2018/ 19 and 19/20. This 
includes: -

Page 2

Agenda Item 7



3

 Framework Agreement with providers of placements within Residential Children’s 
Homes. This will be a Peninsula contract with 4 neighbouring authorities. Devon 
County Council’s contributions to this contract will be in the region of £12 million 
per year. 

 Framework Agreement for Supported Living Options for the provision of 
accommodation and support for young people aged 16 and above who are 
Children in Care or Care Leavers. The value of this contract will be in the region 
of £14 million over a 4-year period. 

 Block contract to secure residential beds in Devon to the proposed value of 
£10.78 million over a 5-year period. 

 Some Residential Short Breaks Services. These services will be funded by 
Devon County Council and NEW Devon CCG and South Devon & Torbay CCG. 
The value over a 5-year period is estimated to be £6.5 million. 

4.2  It is recommended in agreeing the strategy that the above contracts will be awarded 
through Delegated Decision by Lead Portfolio Holder and Chief Officer.   

5. Environmental Impact Considerations

5.1  There are no specific environmental related issues arising from the sufficiency strategy. 

6. Equality Considerations

6.1 Where relevant to the decision, the Equality Act 2010 Public Sector Equality Duty 
requires decision makers to give due regard to the need to: -

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited conduct;
 advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 
 Foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding.

6.2 In considering equality impacts we need to take into account age, disability, 
race/ethnicity (including Gypsies and Travellers), gender and gender identity, religion 
and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women/ new and breastfeeding mothers, 
marriage/civil partnership status, in coming to a decision. A decision maker may also 
consider other relevant factors such as caring responsibilities, rural isolation or 
socioeconomic disadvantage. 

6.3 An Impact Assessment have been completed. This has been included for consideration 
for the purpose of this item. This assessment highlights the potential for commissioning 
intentions and priorities identified within the Sufficiency Strategy for Children’s Services 
to achieve positive social impacts for Devon’s children in care, care leavers and disabled 
children and economic impacts for Devon as a whole.

7. Legal Considerations

7.1 There are no specific legal considerations at this time resulting from the production of 
the sufficiency strategy for Children’s Services. 

8. Risk Management Considerations

8.1 There are no specific risks to manage or consider at this time resulting from the 
production of the sufficiency strategy for Children’s Services. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



4

9. Public Health Impact
None

10. Conclusion 

10.1 A sufficiency strategy for Children’s Services has been produced that is informed by 
the principles we hold as corporate parents and that responds to the ‘sufficiency duty’ 
held by Local Authorities outlined in section 2 of this report. The sufficiency strategy 
outlines how we will ensure that children and young people who need to be in care 
can grow up in high quality provision that is well matched to and effectively meets 
their immediate and long-term needs and provides them with stability and 
permanence at the earliest opportunity.  It also describes Devon’s ambitions and how 
we will achieve the best for our children and young people in care, disabled children 
and care leavers in light of our understanding of their needs, now and in the future 
and of local provision.

 
10.2 Therefore, it is recommended that Cabinet: -

10.2.1  Endorse the Children’s Services Sufficiency Strategy for Placements and Services 
for Children in Care, Care Leavers & Disabled Children and agree arrangements for 
this report to be published on the Council’s website.

10.2.2 Agree to the commissioning intentions set out in the strategy and for contract award 
decisions to be undertaken through a delegated decision by the Portfolio Holder for 
Children’s Services and Schools for Devon County Council and the Chief Officer for 
the following contracts: - for Residential Childrens Home Framework, Supported 
Living Options Framework, Residential Block Contract and Residential Short Breaks 
Contract.

Electoral Divisions:  All

Cabinet Member for Children’s Services:  Councillor James McInnes

Chief Officer for Childrens Services: Jo Olsson

Head of Commissioning Childrens Services: Fiona Fleming

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972: LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

Contact for Enquiries:  Fiona Fleming, Head of Commissioning, 

BACKGROUND PAPER            

Impact Assessment: 
CS1839 - Sufficiency 
Strategy Impact Assessment.pdf

Appendix 1: Sufficiency Strategy (attached)

Page 4

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Sufficiency Strategy  
For Placements & Services for Children in Care, 

Care Leavers and Disabled Children  
 

2018-2020 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Page 5



 

 
2 

Contents  

What Young  People Tell Us ………..…………………………………………... 3 

Our Aspirations ……………………………..………………………………………... 4 

Purpose, National Context & Local Context ……………………………... 5 

Needs Analysis ………………..……………………………………………..………...6 

Review of Current Sufficiency…….………………..…………………..……….10 

Fostering  .................................... …………………………………………..….12 

Special Guardianship Orders ……………………………………………………..15 

Adoption & Regional Adoption Agency……………………………………...16 

Alternative Provision for High Risk & Complex Children ……...……17 

 

Welfare Secure …………………………………………………………………………………………………..………………...17 

Residential Children’s Homes………………………………………………………………………………..……………….18 

Supported Living Options for Children Looked After & Care Leavers aged 16 Plus ……...……..….20 

Support for Young People Presenting as Homeless or at Risk of Homelessness……………………...21 

Placements for Disabled Children & Short Breaks ……………….………………………………………………….22 

Commissioning Approach …………………..………………………………………………………………………...……….23 

Appendix 1  National Drivers ………………………………………………………………………………………….……...24 

Appendix 2 Glossary………………………………………………………………….……………………………………….…..26 

Reviewing this Strategy  
This Strategy will ensure we develop sufficient placements to meet the needs of our children and young people in care and disa-
bled children in Devon. 
 
We will keep the engagement process for the strategy live throughout the year with young people, the workforce, providers and 
stakeholders.  A formal refresh of the strategy will be published annually.   
 
A Market Development Plan has informed this strategy and this action plan will continue to be developed and implemented with 
the impact of this reported twice a year and informing the refreshed plan for 2020.  

 
 
If you have any comments about the Sufficiency Strategy, please send these through to the following mailbox:-  
childrenscommissioningsecure-mailbox@devon.gov.uk   

Page 6



 

 
3 

Useful web links :- 
 https://

www.standupspeakup.org.uk/ 
 

 https://twitter.com/SusuDevon# 

Opportunities for Development  
 Refresh approach of Children in Care Council and Care Leaver Forum working alongside commissioners and senior officers to 

ensure the voice and experiences of care received by young people is at the heart of future commissioning activity. In addition 
ensuring these forums are as effective as they can be and are well represented. 

 Develop an Engagement & Participation Strategy and implement an action plan to continue to improve and systemize our ap-
proach to participation and engagement whilst ensuring outcomes inform strategic development and commissioning of ser-
vices effectively. 

 Continue to build a culture that values and supports the participation and engagement of children, young people and families.  

 Refresh Devon’s Pledge to Children in Care.  

What Went Well 
 Children in and leaving care in Devon have worked in partnership with officers at DCC and NHS England to develop a pro-

gramme of personal health and wellbeing budgets. They have been instrumental in influencing the shape of the national 
programme to empower children and young people to manage how to respond to and plan for their wellbeing needs.  

 In 2016 our work involving children and young people in decision making met 6 of the 7 standards LILAC (Leading Improve-
ments for Looked After Children) standards and our facilitation of young people in the Takeover Challenge in 2016 received 
a Gold Award from the Children’s Commissioner. 

 Devon have a Children in Care Council and Care Leaver Forums to facilitate in hearing the voice of our Children in Care and 
Care Leavers. Children and young people in Devon can use apps such as MoMo and MoMo Express to tell us what they 
think about services and communicate with their social workers and the Stand Up Speak Up website to find information 
about rights and entitlements , how to have their say or get involved with the work of the Children in Care Council and Care 
Leaver Forum. 

 Opportunities have been made available to obtain views of disabled children and young people and their families to ensure 
services meet needs through the Local Offer Reference Group, Devon Parent Carer Voice, In Control and use of Healthwatch 
for example. 

The 
Pledge  
Devon County Council have devel-
oped a pledge for our Children in 
Care. This summarises all of the 
promises we make to children in 
care in Devon based on what they 
have told us is important.  
This includes promises concerned 
with placements, placement 
moves, safety, choice and involve-
ment of the young person for in-
stance. 
Details of our pledge are pub-
lished on the Stand Up Speak Up 
website.  
https://www.standupspeakup.org.uk/
being-in-care-2/  

 Examples of What Devon Children Have Told Us  
 Support to feel happy in placements by having good carers, support needs met and being 

treated as individuals (2016, Children in Care Council exploring experiences of placement sta-
bility). 

 To feel safe, feel at home and have fun (2017, Children in Care Council exploring ‘What do I 
want from my Placement?’) 

 The young person should be asked about what they like and don’t like (food/activities/living 
environments), how much they want to share about their past, what they need for their faith 
or education. You do not need to be an expert, just be respectful and ask so you can under-
stand them properly and don’t make assumptions. Make it clear they don’t have to tell you, 
it’s a choice (2017, engagement with Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children to create ‘Top 
Tips’ resource for carers providing placements). 

 We need more training to prepare us for life after supported accommodation. Training needs 
to be at different levels so we can build on what we already know. We want to know what 
help we’re entitled to from people like Job Centre Plus (Children in Care/ Care Leavers  aged 
16 plus). 

 “I didn’t know how to do anything . My foster carer listened to me……...I like I that she keeps 
in touch with me. Matching the placement with the person is really important “. (Care Leavers, 
say…. about the Sufficiency Strategy, 2018).  

 “We agree with most of this but the carers need a lot of support and training to help this hap-
pen “. (Care Leavers, say…. about the Sufficiency Strategy, 2018).  

 “Not everyone can support all of our needs all of the time but if they can get it as close as they 
can, then that’s good enough”. (Care Leavers, say…. about the Sufficiency Strategy, 2018).  

1. What Young People Tell Us  

Our Vision for Participation & Engagement in Devon 
Devon County Council want all children and young people being supported by Children’s Ser-
vices to feel motivated and encouraged to share their views and experiences because they know 
they will be listened to, respected and their views acted upon. We want this to  
 be inclusive of the diverse community we serves and through listening effective we want to 
strengthen practice, and improve outcomes  for children. 

Page 7

https://www.standupspeakup.org.uk/being-in-care-2/
https://www.standupspeakup.org.uk/being-in-care-2/


 

 

4 

2. Our Aspirations   

The ambition is for the majority of children in care to be placed in family settings, with a small minority needing residential placements for 

a time limited period to enable their complex needs to be met, usually with a view to a planned return into a family setting. Only a very 

few young people, usually because of the age they came into care and their more complex or risk-taking behaviours, may need to remain 

in residential care until a planned move onto semi-independence. We seek to ensure that young people leaving care are prepared well for 

independence by actively working to ensure care leavers are in suitable accommodation and positively addressing any risk of homeless-

ness. This includes both ensuring young people are supported to develop practice skills required for independent living as well as being 

provided with appropriate support for their full range of physical, emotional and sexual needs and to engage in education, employment or 

training.  

 

Planned practice improvements and system level change will facilitate the Council in being able to achieve its aspirations and commission-

ing intentions for our children in care and care leavers as described below. Planned practice improvements to be achieved currently in-

clude:- a new practice model to improve consistency and quality of care planning and the effectiveness of interventions through more out-

come based approaches; a model of adolescent risk management to enable children and young people with risk taking behaviour to be 

better supported in the community; support and training to foster carers; a review of the Children in Care CAMHS pathway which was im-

plemented to provide early screening for all children within the first few weeks of being in care; a more active approach to step children 

down from residential care to family based care at the right time and to improve our commissioning and quality assurance of placements 

including through work with Local Authorities across the Peninsula. 

 

This sufficiency strategy seeks to support the delivery of our Corporate Parenting priorities by ensuring the following:- 

Useful web links :- 

https://
www.devonchildrenandfamilie
spartnership.org.uk/  
 

Early Help  
 Effective provision exists for children on the 

edge of care to support children and young 
people to remain at home or to return home, 
where ever possible. 

 Strengthen approaches for adolescents on the 
edge of care to prevent them from needing 
care in a crisis and to enable them to return 
home from care safely and more quickly when 
it is needed.  

 Secure joint funding and commission multi-
disciplinary team capacity to support delivery 
of edge of care services.  

 Support young people and families through 
intervention and mediation at an earlier point 
to prevent young people who are presenting a 
risk of homelessness. 

Improving Stability & Permanence 
 Children and young people unable to 

safely remain at home or to return 
home from care are provided with 
placements that provide stability and 
permanence and help them build resil-
ience. 

 There is sufficient  high quality local 
provision to cater for the needs of all 
children across all placement types. 

 By increasing access to wrap around 
services. 

 By increasing number of adoptive 
placements. 

Improving Outcomes for Children in 
Care & Care Leavers 

 Ensure they are supported to develop the 
skills and abilities to confidently move onto 
independence, with personalized support 
where needed.  

 Ensure they are prepared for adulthood 
and independence.  

 Influence care and placement . 

 Increase local availability of high quality 
residential placements. 

 Improve approaches to ‘stepping down’ 
children and young people from residential 
placements by working creatively with fos-
ter carers both in-house and from the inde-
pendent sector (IFA) at an earlier point.  

Preparation for Adulthood 
 Develop the 16 plus market to 

include high quality, flexible 
support options for young peo-
ple as they transition to inde-
pendence that build on ex-
isting resources. 

 Ensure effective quality assur-
ance of supported accommo-
dation providers given the un-
regulated nature of this provi-
sion. 

Increase in Access to Family Based Care 
 Where this is consistent with their needs, chil-

dren are brought up in families and provided 
with permanence, including through adoption 
and friends and family placements. 

 Where children are unable to live in families, 
residential care is used in an outcome focused 
and time limited way, planning actively for a 
return to family life or independence. 

 Increase friends and family fostering options to 
maintain family connections and create great-
er stability. 

 Continue to increase sufficiency of in house 
fostering including through training to support 
carers to improve placement stability. 

 Support for complex needs and emergency 
placements to reduce reliance on residential.  

Reducing the Impact of Crisis 
Care 

 Increase and make best use of 
high quality residential place-
ments available locally and local 
services for children in crisis and/ 
or with high risk behaviours. 

Page 8



 

 

5 

3.  Purpose   

As corporate parents, Devon County Council is committed to ensuring 

children and young people in care achieve the best possible outcomes 

and are well prepared and supported to step confidently into adulthood 

with the support they need. Key to this is that when they cannot remain 

within their family, children and young people are provided with perma-

nence and stability in care in settings which meet their changing needs 

over time. We know from research that maintaining family ties, friend-

ships and education, wherever possible, is crucial and significantly im-

pacts on the likelihood of achieving positive outcomes for children and 

young people in care. Local provision also makes it easier to engage the 

full range of local partners in the multi-disciplinary arrangements that are 

essential to achieving good outcomes. 

 

Sufficiency is approached in collaboration with our partners across the 

area, including our Peninsula Commissioning Partners and other border-

ing authorities, alongside our local response to national priorities that 

support different approaches to supporting children in care such as the 

NHS England demonstrator for children in care with mental health issues 

through Integrated Personal Commissioning (IPC). 

4. National Context  

“In Devon, we seek to ensure that children are supported to remain with their families but that, when care is needed, children are 
safe, their health needs are met, they make appropriate progress with their learning and development, are developing the skil ls 

needed for independence, are prepared for being economically independent and are supported to make a positive contribution in 
their community”.   

5. Local Context  

Useful web links :- 
National Drivers Narey Reports:-  

 https://www.gov.uk/government/
publications/childrens-residential-care-in-
england 

 

 https://www.gov.uk/government/
publications/foster-care-in-england  

Section 22G of the Children Act 1989 sets out  a definition of 

sufficiency and describes a ‘sufficiency’ duty for Local Authori-

ties (see Appendix  1 National Drivers).  

 

This sufficiency strategy is informed by these principles and 

outlines :- 

 How we will ensure that children and young people who 

need to be in care can grow up in high quality provision 

that is well matched to and effectively meets their imme-

diate and long-term needs whilst providing  stability and 

permanence at the earliest opportunity.  

 Devon’s ambitions and how we will achieve the best for 

our children and young people in care and care leavers in 

light of our understanding of their needs, now and in the 

future and of local provision 

 Links to the Council’s wider strategy for children in care, 

which also sets out Devon’s Corporate Parenting arrange-

ments  

The number of children in care has increased steadily over the 

last nine years and continues to increase nationally. Alongside 

this, the reduction in funding to local authorities means that 

value for money approaches are essential. 

 

The DfE has commissioned reviews of both residential care 

(2016) and fostering (2018), both led by Sir Martin Narey, 

which made a number of recommendations designed to im-

prove sufficiency, quality and use of residential and foster care. 

Key messages from these reviews included the need to ensure 

access to high quality foster care for the majority of children in 

care and to ensure the provision of high quality specialist resi-

dential care for a small number of children whose needs can-

not be met in a family setting at a particular time. 

Stability and permanence in family care is seen as the key vehicle to 

achieving these aims. As such, areas we have identified and need to 

focus on have been summarised below:- 

 

 Ensuring that we are consistently ‘doing the right thing at the right 

time’ before children and young people come into our care, whilst 

they are in our care and when we are looking to return them to 

families or support them into permanence or independence.  

 Making sure the right children are in care by preventing some 

children from coming into care or getting them home more quick-

ly when care is needed for a short period.  

 Enabling more children to be looked after in family settings when 

they do come into care, including older children and children with 

more complex needs. 

 Placement decisions based on good assessments that focus on 

needs, strengths and risks, inform high quality care plans, inform 

effective placement planning and support which enables a child’s 

needs to be met and for permanence to be secured at an early 

point. 

 Using residential placements in a more planned and outcome fo-

cused way to bring about permanence and stability in response to 

a child’s identified needs. 

 Improving the commissioning and brokerage of placements to 

ensure provision is high quality and value for money. 

At March 2017, 
there were 72,670 

Children in Care 
nationally, an in-
crease of 3% on 

2016.  

Page 9



 

 

“Devon’s statistical 
neighbours had an av-
erage of 551 Children 
in Care in 2017”.  

6 

6. Devon Needs Analysis 

Children in Care 
Devon is a large rural county with a population of around 780,000. Around 163,800 are chil-

dren and young people aged 0-19 years. 

 

At March 2018 there were 697 children in care. Devon’s children in care rate per 10,000 pop-

ulation for this period was 48.55. This was lower than the rate per 10,000 population record-

ed for local authorities who are our statistical neighbours, the South West and England during 

this period respectively. Of these children in care 58% were male and 42% female. Devon also 

have a high proportion of children in care aged 11 years plus. 

 

182 of our children in care were aged 16 and 17 years. In 2017, Devon had a higher number 

of children in care compared to their statistic neighbours. On average numbers of children in 

care have continued to increase from 2012-2017 across England, the South West and local 

authorities representing our statistical neighbours. 

 

88% of Children Looked After during this period were White British. Figure 2 provides an eth-

nicity profile for the remaining 12% of children in care at March 2018.  

 

Figure 1:- Age and Gender Profile for Devon Children in Care 

at March 2018  

At March 2018, the top three categories of need 

for Devon children in care were abuse or neglect 

(54%), family dysfunction(12%) and family in acute 

stress (10%). Other categories of need for our chil-

dren in care during this period includes child’s dis-

ability, absent parenting, parental illness or disabil-

ity, socially unacceptable behaviour and low in-

come.  

Figure 2:- Ethnicity Profile for Devon Children in Care at March 2018 , excluding White British  

Figure 3:- Need Profile  for Devon Children in Care at March 2018  

Page 10



 

 

7 

Unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) 
Under the National Transfer Scheme there is a voluntary agreement that local authorities could accept UASC totalling up to 0.07% of its 

total child population. Within Devon this could amount to approximately 100 UAS children and young people.   

 

At  April 2018 Devon had 38 UAS children and young people in their care. The current age of UAS children and young people in Devon 

ranges from 15 to 19.  The majority of Devon’s UAS children and young people are male with a smaller proportion of females. 

 

Disabled Children  
At March 2018 of the 697 Children Looked After, 175 were reported to have a disability. This represents 25% of the children in care 
cohort at March 2018. Of the 172 children in care with a disability a higher proportion are male. 76 (44%) of the children in care with 
a disability were aged between 11-15 years, 60(34%) were aged between 16-17 years and 39(22%) were aged between 0-10 years. 
 
Types of disability and need recorded included:-children and young people diagnosed with autism or Asperger’s syndrome, behav-
ioural difficulties including ADHD, communication difficulties, seizures, sensory needs including visual or hearing impairment, incon-
tinence, learning disabilities / special educational needs and disabilities , mobility needs or other needs identified under the Disabil-
ity Discrimination Act (2005). 
 
 
93% of our children in care with a disability were White British. Figure 4 provides an overview of ethnicity for the remaining 7% of 

our children in care  with a disability.  

Figure 4:- Ethnicity Profile for Devon Children in Care  who have a disability at March 2018 .  

In 2017, 36.5% of Devon’s children in care 

had a Statement of SEN or EHCP. This was 

higher than the average recorded for and 

when compared with local authorities who 

are our statistical neighbours who had on 

average of 31.4% of their children in care 

with a Statement of SEN or EHCP and na-

tional figures for England suggesting an aver-

age of 26.7% of children in care had a State-

ment of SEN or EHCP. 

6. Devon Needs Analysis   

Useful web links  

For the needs profile for Devon’s Disabled Children  who  are Children in Need  refer to :- 

 Devon’s SEND Strategy  which can be accessed on our Local offer here:-  https://new.devon.gov.uk/
educationandfamilies/special-educational-needs-and-disability-send-local-offer 

 

 Devon County Council’s Strategic Review  Report of Special Educational Needs Provision 2017/18   which can be 
accessed here:- https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2134&Ver=4 

 

Page 11



 

 

8 

6. Devon Needs Analysis 

Care Leavers  
At 6th September 2018, there were 528 Devon care leavers. 51% of our care leavers 

were male and 49% were female. The majority of Devon’s care leavers are aged be-

tween 18 and 21 years. 22 Devon care leavers were aged 16  and 17 years, and 37 

care leavers were aged between 23 and 24 years. 

Many care leavers who have accessed supported accommodated have multiple vul-

nerabilities and needs for which they require support in placements. Support needs 

identified include:- family breakdown, substance misuse, emotional and/or behav-

ioural difficulties, financial issues, at risk of harm from others, long term illness, men-

tal health issues, impact of parental substance misuse, mental health or domestic 

violence, alcohol issues, offender or at risk of offending and disabilities. 

Figure 5:- Age and Gender Profile for Devon Care Leavers at 

6th September 2018   

At 6th September 2018, the eligibility profile 

identifies 90% of Devon care leavers as former 

relevant care leavers; 8% as qualifying care leav-

ers and 2% as relevant care leavers. 

 

Figure 6:- Ethnicity Profile for Devon Care Leavers  at 6th September 2018 , excluding White British  

Figure 7:- Profile of Devon  Care Leavers  by Eligibility Status at September 

2018  

 At 6th September 2018, 87% of care 

leavers during this period were White 

British. Figure 6 provides an ethnicity 

profile for the remaining 13% of care 

leavers at 6th September 2018. 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

6. Devon Needs Analysis   

9 

Young people presenting as homeless  
In 2017-18, 343 young people approached authorities for support from across the districts and a further 131 young people re-

ceived ongoing support from the previous year. 66% (225) were aged between 16-17 years old, 33% (114) were Devon care 

leavers and for 1%(4) age and status of the young person was unspecified. Of the young people approaching the authorities for 

support in this period 45% were female, 54% were male and 1% identified as transgender. 92% of the young people supported 

in this period were White British. 42% of the young people presenting for support in 2017-18 identified wider needs relating to 

misuse issues; 50% identified wider needs relating to mental health and 20% identified other wider needs. Primary reasons for 

approaching the authorities for support included:- parents no longer / able to accommodate young people; extended family or 

friends no longer willing/ able to accommodate young people; non-violent and violent breakdown of relationships; other forms 

of violence; rent arrears; loss of rented or tiered accommodation; other reasons for loss of rented accommodation; left other 

institution or local authority care including from other local authorities or referred by care leavers team for housing options 

advice. 

 

In 2017-18 of the young people approaching authorities for support a variety of action was undertaken this included:- under-

taking initial housing assessments; case advice was provided; homelessness applications being completed; work being under-

taken with young people by Homelessness Prevention Workers; and in a small number of cases referrals being made to Chil-

dren’s Services or other agencies. 

 

Young people presenting as homeless or at risk of homelessness who go on to access support while in accommodation have 

illustrated multiple vulnerabilities and needs for which they need support in placements. Support needs identified include:- 

family breakdown, substance misuse, emotional and/or behavioural difficulties, financial issues, at risk of harm from others, 

long term illness, mental health issues, impact of parental substance misuse, mental health or domestic violence, alcohol is-

sues, offender or at risk of offending and disabilities. 

 

 

“Family Conflict was the most common 

starting point for homelessness, regardless 

of age”. 

 
Ravenhill, M. (2000). Homeless and Vulnerable 

Young people. Centre for Analysis of School Exclu-

sion, London School of Economics. 

Page 13



 

 

Useful web links  

 https://www.gov.uk/government/

statistics/children-looked-after-in-

england-including-adoption-2016-to-

2017 

“To feel safe, feel at home and have fun”.  
 
Devon County Council Children in Care Council, exploring “What do I 
want from my placement?”.  

10 

7. Review of Current Sufficiency 

Overview of Placements 

 Financial Year 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Adoption (Placed for) 68 85 78 

Fostering 1231 1128 1034 

Children Homes (including Residential 
Special Schools which are dual regis-
tered as a CH). 

126 129 123 

Post 16 Supportive Lodgings 82 104 98 

Secure Units 15 9 6 

Placed with Parents 41 42 51 

Independent Living 38 18 23 

Residential Care Home** 5 6 * 

NHS Medical or nursing care*** 15 11 34 

Residential Family Centre 23 24 10 

Young Offender Institution or Secure 
Training Centre 

5 * * 

Residential Special School (except those 
dual registered as CH) 

9 6 11 

Other 0 * 30 

Total 1658 1569 1504 

Figure 8:-Total  annual number of placement type provided for Devon’s Children in Care from 

April 2014-March2018. 

*Numbers below 5 cannot be reported.   

 

** The DfE definition  for this placement type  includes residential care homes and nursing homes that fall 

within the scope of the Care Standards Act (2000) and the Children’s Homes (England) Regulations (2015). 

The services they provide will normally include an element of personal care or nursing care. ‘Personal care’ 

in this instance generally means help with personal activities such as feeding or washing. This category does 

not include hospitals, or facilities provided by NHS/Health Trusts.  Some older children about to transition 

to adulthood may be placed here if it meets their needs due to disability. 

 

***The DfE definition for this placement type includes hospitals of all kinds when the child is placed there 

as part of a Care Plan or for other facilities provided by NHS/ Health Trusts.  This definition is applied if the 

child has been admitted to hospital and the hospital raise safeguarding concerns then the child might be 

taken into care while they are still in hospital  or  if they are a new born baby in hospital at the point they 

are taken into care  prior to the child being placed with foster parents or returning to their families  or in 

some cases older children who have mental health issues admitted to hospital prior to being moved to a 

specialist hospital or placement. 

The ambition is for the majority of children in care to be 

placed in family settings with a small minority needing 

residential placements for a time limited  period to ena-

ble their complex needs to be met, usually with a view to 

a planned return into a family setting.  

 

Figure 8 provides a breakdown of all placements made  

across a whole year over a three year period. As such, 

data of placements across each whole year will include 

multiple entries for the same child in care who may have 

changed placement type or been discharged and re-

admitted to care over the course of the year.  Definitions 

of placement type are as defined by the DfE.  

 

From April 2014 to March 2018:- 

 It has been possible to secure foster placements for 

the majority of Devon’s children in care ( in the 

range of between  65%-74% of our children in care). 

 7-9% of Devon’s children in care have required a 

placement within a children’s home or residential 

special school. 

 Between 5-7% of Devon’s children in care have 

made use of supported accommodation options 

post 16 years. 

 There has been a decline in the use of residential 

family centres for parent and child fostering assess-

ment due to availability of better community based 

options.  

 

A robust Ofsted inspection framework and structure is in 

place for some provision types including fostering, chil-

dren’s homes and residential special schools. 

In addition, the quality of these placement types are 

monitored by Devon and in some cases in partnership 

with our Peninsula authority partners through quality 

assurance processes including site visiting.  Further de-

tail is provided at the end of the report.  

 

Page 14



 

 

11 

Figure 9- Number of Children in Care who had 3 or more placement 

moves by year 

Figure 11:- Legal Status of Devon’s Children in Care at March 2018  Figure 12:- Time  spent in Care for Devon’s Children in Care at March 2018  

At March 2018, 55% of Devon’s children in care were in the 

care of the local authority under a full care order. A further 

22% were in the care of the local authority under Section 20 

and 23% were in the care of the local authority under an in-

terim care order or placement order. 

At March 2018 a high proportion of Devon’s children in care 

had been in the care of the authority for 3 years or more. A 

much smaller proportion had been in the care of the local 

authority for less than 6 months or 6 weeks. 

 

 

7. Review of Current Sufficiency 

Figure 10:- Percentage of Children in Care in the same placement for at least 2 years 

or are placed for adoption and their adoptive placement together with their previ-

The number of Devon’s children in care recording 3 or more 

placement moves has shown a gradual decline from 2015/16 to 

2017/18. However, a higher number of Devon children in care 

record 3 or more placement moves when compared to other lo-

cal authorities who represent our statistical neighbours. Place-

ment stability and permanence is a priority for us and the devel-

opment sections of this strategy set out how we will look to im-

prove performance in this area.  

In 2016/17, 69% of  Devon’s children in care were in the same 

placement for at least two years. This includes children who are 

placed for adoption or where their adoptive placement together 

with their previous placement has lasted for at least 2 years. Our 

achievements here compares well  with other local authorities 

representing Devon’s statistical neighbours, from across the 

South West and England nationally. 

Page 15



 

 

12 

8. Fostering- Devon Fostering Service  

Devon’s in-house fostering service– Fostering Devon, aims to provide 

high quality, therapeutic care in  family based placements in communi-

ties for Devon’s children and young people in care.  

 

At March 2018, 529 (75%) of Devon’s 697 children in care were placed 

in fostering arrangements and 358 (67%) in fostering arrangements 

placed  in in-house resources. This is in line  with the national average. 

 

 

261 households can offer up to 505 placements, including many ap-

proved for sibling groups to be placed together. There is currently a 

reasonable spread of foster carers across the County. The service have 

been increasing their capacity to support older children and this is re-

flected in current profile. In 2016/17 Devon had a higher number of 

approved foster placements (excluding short breaks) when compared 

with the average number of approved foster placements for local au-

thorities representing Devon’s statistical neighbours. 

 

Of the 30 children in care accessing the Devon Young People’s Accom-
modation Service 12 were male and 18 were female , 12 were aged 16 
years and 18 were aged 17 years. Of the 11 children in care in internal 
parent and child placements 9 were aged under 1 years ,and the ma-
jority were male.  

Approval Numbers 
Households with this 

approval 

  

Maximum Placements 

1 74 74 

2 89 178 

3 35 105 

1 (2 if sibs) 41 82 

1 (3 if sibs) * * 

2 (3 if sibs) 21 63 

Grand Total 261 505 

Figure 14:- Households approved to provide fostering placements for Devon Children 

in Care  

Fostering Type 
Number 
of Chil-

dren 

% of CIC in fos-
tering place-

ments 

% of all 
Children in 

Care 

317 

67% 
 
 
 

  

  
  
 
 

51% 

  
  

DCC In-House Fostering  
 

Of the  In-House Fostering 
Placements  number with 
‘family and friends’ carers 

56 
 

Devon Young People’s 
Accommodation Service 30 

Internal Parent and Child 
Placement 11 

Independent Fostering 
Agency 168 

  
33% 

 
 

  
25% 

External Parent and Child 
Placement * 

Total Number of Foster 
placements 

529 
 

100% 
 

75% 

Figure 13:- Children in Care in Fostering Placements at March 2018 

Figure 15:- Age of Children in Care in In– House Fostering Placements at 

March 2018 excluding those in Devon Young People’s Accommodation Ser-

vice and Internal Parent & Child placements . 

Figure 16- Gender of Children in Care in In– House Fostering Placements  at 

March 2018  excluding those in Devon Young People’s Accommodation Ser-

vice and Internal Parent & Child placements.  

 * Numbers below 5 cannot be reported.  

Adolescent Placements  
At March 18, of the 317 children in care placed within in-house 

foster placements, 45% (142) of Devon’s children in care were 

aged between 13-17 years. This represents an increasing num-

ber of adolescents being placed with in-house foster carers. At 

March 18 of the 168 children in care being placed with foster 

carers from Independent Fostering Agencies, 47% (79) were 

aged between 13-17 years. 

Figure 17:- Number of Children in Care aged 13-17 years by fostering place-

ment type.  

Page 16



 

 

13 

Workforce  
Training and support has been being provided to enable more 
carers to be able to meet the needs of adolescents.  
 
The most significant reasons for carers leaving the service are 
reported to be:- 

 Permanency for the child in care  

 Personal circumstances for example ill health  
 
There will continue to be a risk related to turnover of foster 
carers in 2018/19, particularly due to the ageing profile of cur-
rent carers. 
 
During 2017/18, active recruitment has been undertaken with 
the intention to address turnover of foster carers across the 
service .  

8. Fostering- Devon Fostering Service  

What is Working Well  
 A good proportion of Devon children in care are placed with 

in-house foster carers. 

 Support and training to carers is enabling more adolescents 
to be placed with foster carers. 

 Other Local Authorities who are seeking to provide therapeu-
tic parenting support have approached Devon for infor-
mation about the model being adopted by the Placement 
Support Team. 

 100% of carers and professionals who have provided feed-
back to the Placement Support Team have rated the service 
as good or exceptional. 

 Support being offered through the Placement Support Team 
is increasing placement stability and decreasing occurrence 
of placement breakdown resulting in a 35% reduction.  

 
 “10% of the foster care workforce retire 

or leave each year”. 
Fostering Network  Opportunities for Development  

 Continue undertaking active recruitment to manage current 
age profile and expected turnover of carers to manage suffi-
ciency of in house foster placements.  

 Continue to increase access to placement support team to 
further improve stability of placements.  

 Active recruitment of  foster carers to provide fostering place-
ments for disabled children . 

 To introduce a 6 week Nurturing Attachment course for new 
carers to promote placement stability and help prevent likeli-
hood of placement breakdown.  

 There is a vision to implement a monthly multi-agency drop-in 
clinic.  

 To increase preventative work, measures and intervention to 
reduce likelihood of placement breakdown and prevent the 
need for crisis intervention measures to stabilize placements 
for children and young people. 

 
 

Placement Support  

The Devon County Council Placement Support Team provides sup-
port to all in-house foster carers, IFA carers and Special Guardians 
who are looking after children and young people with additional 
complex needs and where placement stability is under threat. Sup-
port is provided in the form of crisis intervention or planned thera-
peutic intervention. 
 
The team aims to support placement stability and longevity not by 
aiming to change behaviour but by responding to behaviour in an 
appropriate way. As such, support provided is informed by Dyadic 
Developmental Practice: Psychotherapy and Parenting (DDP), a 
framework for therapy and trauma attachment for parenting Devel-
opmentally Traumatized Children who are fostered or adopted. 
 
In 2017/18 the Placement Support Team received a total of 332 
referrals for support and intervention. Of these referrals received 
71% were for support for carers of children and young people in 
fostering placements; 18% were for support for carers of children 
and young people in adoptive placements and 11% were for sup-
port for special guardians with children and young people with Spe-
cial Guardianship Orders in place. In addition, 10% of the referrals 
received to support fostering placements involved support for IFA 
carers with children and young people in placements with them. 
 
In 2017/18 support and intervention provided by the Placement 
Support Team achieved placement stability for 68% of cases/
referrals for support received by the service. Furthermore, involve-
ment of the Placement Support team facilitated in achieving fewer 
placement breakdowns in 2017/18 (35% reduction). 
 
The Placement Support Team can also provide support and stability 
to children and young people while suitable placements are being 
secured as part of planned placement moves. 

Useful web links  

 https://www.fosteringindevon.org.uk/ 

 https://www.fosteringindevon.org.uk/guide/resources/
childrens-placement-support-team/ 

“There were 53,420 children in foster care 

in England at end of March 2017, 67% 

placed with local authority carers and 33% 

with Independent Fostering Agency carers 

”. 

 

Foster Care in England:- A review for the De-

partment  for Education by Sir Martin Narey & 

Mark Owers , February 2018.  

Page 17



 

 

14 

9.Independent Fostering Agencies 

“As of 31st August 2017, 91% of Independ-

ent Fostering Agencies were judged ‘Good’ 

or ‘Outstanding’ a proportion which has 

been increasing”. 

 

Foster Care in England:- A review for the 

Department  for Education by Sir Martin 

Narey & Mark Owers , February 2018.  

The quality of the independent fostering market is good, with most 

agencies maintaining a ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ Ofsted grading. The 

Peninsula Board has facilitated closer collaborative working with pro-

viders and local authorities. This has been particularly important in 

promoting placement stability, the take up of special guardianship 

and other permanence options.  

 

At March 2018, 168 of Devon’s Children in Care were placed with 

foster carers from Independent Fostering Agencies, this represented 

25% of all children in care at March 2018. At March 2018 a higher 

proportion of placements with Independent Fostering Agencies were  

being provided for children in care who were male.  

 

A Peninsula Framework Agreement for fostering placements with 

IFA’s has been operating since April 2013.  This agreement recently 

reached its end date. So a further Peninsula Framework agreement 

was re-commissioned and successfully awarded. The latest Peninsula 

framework agreement (commissioned by Devon, Torbay, Plymouth 

and Somerset) has been operating since April 2018. There are 16 

IFA’s operating on the Framework Agreement offering a combination 

of  or only standard fostering placements, enhanced fostering place-

ments and parent and child fostering placements. Of the 16 IFA’s 

operating on the agreement  15 IFA’s  can provide standard fostering 

placements, 13 IFA’s can provide  enhanced fostering placements and 

13 IFA’s can provide parent and child fostering placements. IFA’s op-

erating on the agreement  includes a range of large national provid-

ers, smaller local and specialist foster agencies. The Peninsula 

Framework Agreement  offers a potential capacity of up to 498 fos-

tering households offering a potential of 1,036 fostering placements 

across the Peninsula.  

Opportunities for Development  
 To improve sufficiency in placements for older children, those with more 

complex support needs and emergency placements, to reduce lead into a 
reliance on residential provision. 

 For those children in residential provision, there is a need to improve step-
down arrangements to allow a move towards family-based care and long-
term stability . 

 To use contract monitoring mechanisms to support IFA’s on the Peninsula 
Framework Agreement  who are required to develop in the following are-
as:- 

 Commitment to permanence including  their ability to support 
long term fostering matches, staying put arrangements and op-
portunities for special guardianship orders.  

 Active recruitment of foster carers aiming to achieve  a 10% 
growth annually.  

 Development and training opportunities for IFA foster carers in-
cluding specialist training to facilitate supporting children with 
complex needs in foster placements and parent and child carers. 

 Quality of assessments for parent and child fostering placements.  

 Model of service delivery for those providing enhanced fostering 
placements to build resilience and  interface for step-down with 
residential providers.  

 
 
 

Figure 18:-  Age of Children in Care in Fostering Placements with Independ-

ent Fostering Agencies at March 2018 excluding external Parent & Child 

placements . 

Figure 19:-  Gender of Children in Care in  Fostering Placements with 

Independent Fostering Agencies at March 2018 excluding external 

Parent & Child placements . 

“The Peninsula has been commended on 
positive and supportive relationships in the 

recent NAFP Survey”.  
 

Nationwide Association of Fostering Providers 
(NAFP) 2018.  

What is Working Well  
 There are ‘sufficient’ numbers of placements with Independ-

ent Fostering Agencies for children in care in Devon.  

 The provision  of placements  is of good quality. 

Page 18



 

 

15 

10. Special Guardianship Orders  

“The majority of SGOs are made to carers who have an 

existing relationship with the child and who, with some 

appropriate support, intend to and will be able to care 

for the child until 18.  

 

There were 3,520 SGOs awarded in 2014-15, up from 

2,150 in 2011-12”.  

 

Department for Education, Special Guardianship Re-

view:- Report on Findings. Government Consultation 

Response, December 2015  

Factors Impacting on Sufficiency  
 Providing permanence to children in care in the form of a 

special guardianship order requires a great commitment 
from special guardians.  

 

 
What is Working Well  
 The number of special guardianship orders granted to Dev-

on County Council children continues to grow year on year 
with increasing numbers being granted for babies and tod-
dlers and an increasing number of assessments being un-
dertaken year on year. Devon County Council have desig-
nated, skilled workers to assess and support Devon special 
guardians . 

 
 
Opportunities for Development  
 Children and young people unable to safely remain at 

home or to return home from care are provided with place-
ments that provide stability and permanence and help 
them build resilience.  

 Continue to increase up take of special guardianship orders 
where this is in the best interests of children and young 
people.  

 
 

Special guardianship orders help to provide local authorities with great-
er choice over permanence options for children in care if adoption is not 
the plan and as an alternative to long term care.  
 
Figure 20 illustrates Devon’s performance with regard to Special Guardi-
anship orders. Improving performance in this area continues to be a 
priority for the Local Authority.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Around a third of Special Guardianship Orders granted in Devon are 
deemed to be ‘private applications’ and would be in addition to the fig-
ures presented above. In these circumstances a child hasn’t been in the 
care of the local authority but may have been living with a relative or 
friend for a significant period and they make an application to court for 
a special guardianship order or the child goes straight from their birth 
parents to the special guardian during court proceedings. 
 

Figure 20:– Percentage of Children in Care in year leaving care due to 

Special Guardianship Order  

Useful web links  

 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/
uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/
file/656593/
Special_guardianship_statutory_guidance.pdf 

 https://www.devonadoption.org.uk/home/special-
guardianship/ 

 https://www.grandparentsplus.org.uk/ 

Page 19



 

 

16 

 

“The RAA is the right step for the region. We have a lot of good 

practice to draw upon that when shared will improve the service 

such that children will wait less time to be adopted and parents 

will receive the same high standard of support.” 

 
 Cllr James McInnes, DDC Cabinet Member with responsibility 

for Council’s adoption service  

11. Adoption and Regional Adoption Agency 

Adoption represents one choice for Local Authorities in achieving per-

manence and stability for their Children Looked After as part of loving 

families and as an alternative to long term care.  

 

On average the number of adoptive matches being achieved for 

Devon’s children in care has steadily increased over time. Of Devon’s 

children in care, in 2015 –16,11% (45) left care having been adopted, 

in 2016-17, 14% (50)left care having been adopted and in 2017-18, 

20% (60) left care having been adopted. Figure 21 illustrates our per-

formance over time in comparison with  other local authorities repre-

senting our statistical neighbours and authorities across the South 

West region and England nationally. In 2016-17 Devon’s performance 

was comparable to that being achieved on average for children in 

care across the South West and across England nationally. 

 

76% of the adoptive matches made for Devon’s children in care  in 

2017-18, were made for children aged between 0-3 years, 22% were 

aged 4-7 years and 2% of matches were for children aged 8 years. 

 

 

What is Working Well  
 Devon is achieving an increasing number of adoptive 

matches for its children in care. 

 A regional adoption agency under the banner Adopt 
South West is being developed and implemented for 
Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and Somerset. 

 Opportunities are being made available to obtain 
adopters views and feedback. Insights and experienc-
es are valued and will help to influence the regional 
adoption service being implemented. 

 
 
Opportunities for Development  
 Increasing the number of adoptive placements in Dev-

on and across the region of South West. 

 Continue with development and implementation of 
Regional Adoption Service throughout 2018.  

Useful web links  

 https://raa.adoptsouthwest.org.uk/ 

Figure 21:- Percentage of Children Looked After being Adopted in Year  

Regional Adoption Agency  
Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and Somerset adoption services will become 
a single regional adoption service under the banner ‘Adopt South 
West’ from October 2018. This is in response to the Department of 
Education publication ‘Regionalising Adoption’ in 2015 and the Educa-
tion & Adoption Act (2016). 
 
Regional Adoption Agencies are designed to increase the pool of adop-
tion-ready adopters and children, ensuring quicker matching, provid-
ing better support for adopters and birth families and enabling more 
children to remain within their area, supported by the services which 
already know them. 
 
Children from across the local authorities can currently wait on aver-
age anywhere from six months to longer for adoption. The new re-
gional adoption service will enable the four participating local authori-
ties to achieve adoption in a reduced time frame and facilitate in shar-
ing and developing good practice whilst ensuring all adoptive parents 
across the region receive high levels of quality support from profes-
sionals. 

Page 20



 

 

17 

12. Alternative Provision for High Risk & Complex Children 

Devon County Council have a significant number of 
children and young people with complex needs and 
engaging in high risk behaviours including self-harm, 
sexualized behaviour and aggression. This group of 
children and young people require highly resilient and 
therapeutic care delivered by skilled residential staff.  
The independent sector have indicated a willingness to 
develop provision to meet the needs of this cohort for 
children and young people. However, their capacity to 
undertake this work is constrained by finance and the 
factors described in section 11 concerning the work-
force and quality. As such Devon County Council are 
developing a business case to explore the option of 
developing in– house services to meet the needs of 
these children and young people more readily.  
 
Limitations of the current response to meet the needs 
of these children and young people has also resulted in 
the development of a strategic workstream under the 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership Plan 
(STP) for Devon. This plan aims to transform health and 
care services for local people so they are fit for the fu-
ture. The strategic workstream is focused upon crisis 
care through our Transforming Care Partnership work . 

Opportunities for Development  

 Consider models of therapeutic care found in resi-
dential settings nationally for children and young 
people. 

 Explore opportunities to work collaboratively with 
independent sector providers and neighboring 
authorities to develop residential childrens homes 
locally with specialisms or in– house residential 
childrens homes locally with specialisms. The de-
velopment of such provision would adopt a thera-
peutic model of care that meets the needs of our 
most complex and high risk children and young 
people in care.  

 

Joint Commissioning Intentions & Multi-Agency Response 
for High Risk and Complex Children  

Under the STP Devon County Council are working jointly with health partners 
from across NEW Devon and South Devon & Torbay CCG to:-  

 Develop a tool to identify when needs and high risk behaviours are esca-
lating to prevent the need for crisis care where possible. 

 Develop a Devon wide working protocol to ensure the right services are 
provided to support children and young people in crisis at the right time. 

 Promote children and young people’s emotional wellbeing and mental 
heath as a priority under the STP. Adopting the THRIVE framework across 
commissioned services will personlise support. An important group to be 
supported across the framework includes those requiring risk support en-
compassing risk management and crisis response (see figure X below). 

 Develop capacity to reduce the number of Devon’s complex children being 
supported by tier 4 provision and acute hospital pediatric wards. 

 Secure joint funding and commission multi-disciplinary capacity to support 
delivery of edge of care services. 

https://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/about-us/sustainability-and-transformation-
partnership-stp-102102  

13. Welfare Secure   

The Atkinson Welfare Secure Children’s Home is situated within Devon. The 

operation of this provision is overseen by Devon County Council. The service 

offers a care environment alongside a multi-disciplinary therapeutic team with 

day to day care informed by Dyadic Development Psychotherapy and  therapeu-

tic parenting model PACE. A school is also employed directly and available to 

children and young people placed within the Atkinson Welfare Secure Chil-

dren’s Home. There are 12 beds available within the Atkinson Welfare Secure 

Children’s Home. In 2017-18 average occupancy was 76% across 10 beds. Due 

to workforce challenge and staffing pressures occupancy is currently 50% of 12 

beds. 

 

Health Services 
Section 10 funding from NHS England currently funds the provision of different 
health services available to children and young people placed within the Atkin-
son Welfare Secure Children’s Home. Assessments will be undertaken and sup-
port and intervention agreed depending on the needs of each child or young 
person. Funded health services currently includes some input from CAMHS ser-
vices, an advanced mental health practitioner, a psychologist, a psychiatrist,  a 
school nurse, YSMART and sessions from a GP. 
 

Figure 22:- THRIVE Framework  

Page 21



 

 

18 

14. Residential Children’s Homes  

Devon County Council currently source residential placements 

for children in care from the independent sector. There are 

currently 89 beds available across independent sector chil-

dren’s homes in Devon. These beds are provided across 35 

different children’s homes in Devon and these children’s homes 

are operated by 12 different independent sector organisations. 

 

The quality of the independent sector children’s homes oper-

ating across Devon is presented below. This illustrates that the 

quality of Devon’s children’s homes has gradually increased 

over time with more homes being rated ‘Good’ or 

‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted and a decreasing number being rated 

as ‘Requires Improvement’ or ‘Inadequate’ by Ofsted. At July 

2018, 79% of Devon’s children’s homes had been rated ‘Good’ 

or ‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted, 18% were judged as ‘Requires Im-

provement’ and 3% of Devon’s children’s homes were yet to be 

inspected, 0% had been rated as ‘Inadequate’. 

 

Between 40 and 43 childrens homes were operating in Devon 

across the independent sector between June 2013 and March 

2015. From March 2016 to July 2018 there has been a slight 

decrease in the number of childrens homes operating in Devon 

to between 33 and 38 childrens homes.  

 

Market Specialism 
There are 6 providers (11%) who describe their residential 

placements as having a specialism . This identified:- 

 12 beds for CSE,  

 3 beds for Mental health,  

 2 beds for emergency placements and  

 3 beds listed for Learning disability. 

 

Geographically Close Provision 
A snapshot survey undertaken in February 2018 revealed 45% of possible 

residential placements in Devon were being used by placing authorities 

other than Devon County Council, there was a 15% vacancy and 6% were 

unusable at the time of the survey. 

 

 

 
 

Cornwall  
66 beds available in 14 
Children’s Homes  

Plymouth 
16 beds available in 10 
Children’s Homes  

Devon  
89 beds 
available in 35 
Children’s 
Homes  

 

Torbay 
6 beds available in 4 
Children’s Homes  

Somerset 
114 beds available in 33 
Children’s Homes  

Dorset 
178 beds 
available in 8 
Children’s 
Homes  

Cornwall  
66 beds available in 14 
Children’s Homes  

Devon  
89 beds 
available in 35 
Children’s 
Homes  

Torbay 
6 beds available in 4 
Children’s Homes  

Somerset 
114 beds available in 33 
Children’s Homes  

Dorset 
178 beds 
available in 
8 Children’s 
Homes  

Plymouth 
16 beds available in 10 
Children’s Homes  

Figure 24:- Number of residential beds in Childrens Homes across neighbouring authorities. 

*Note figures for Dorset and Cornwall include residential placements for provision of short 

breaks and within residential schools.  

Figure 23:-Ofsted Grading for Devon Children's Homes from 2013-2018  

Plymouth 
390 Children 
in Care  
(2017) 

Devon  
680 Children in 
Care (2017).  

Torbay 
285 Children 
in Care 
(2017)  

Somerset 
475 Children in 
Care  
(2017) 

Dorset 
485 Children 
in Care 
(2017) 

Cornwall 
415 
Children in 
Care 

Figure 25:- Number of Children in Care  across  neighbouring authorities. In 2017 

Page 22



 

 

On average, nationally , 81% of 

Children’s Homes are being 

judged as ‘Good’ or 

‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted.  

19 

Factors currently impacting upon resi-

dential sufficiency in Devon includes:- 
 Competition with neighbouring authorities as demand for 

residential placements in the South West continues to rise 

and other local authorities placing at distance. 

 Quality of the market. A higher proportion of children’s 

homes in the South West are being rated as ‘Requires Im-

provement’ or ‘’Inadequate’ by Ofsted. This creates a com-

mercial risk for independent providers in this market. 

 Workforce. Children’s home providers across the independ-

ent sector report challenges in recruitment and retention of 

high quality, experienced managers and care home staff. This 

impacts upon their ability to respond to the placement needs 

of young people across the local authority. 

 Matching issues. 

 
What is Working Well  
 Devon County Council have worked collaboratively with pro-

viders to encourage development of new children’s homes in 
area to increase placement sufficiency .  

 Many providers indicating a preference to accept placements 
from the local authority area the home is within. Devon 
County Council has developed good working relationships 
with providers across this sector to enable us to work collab-
oratively with providers to continue to develop placement 
sufficiency and quality of provisions. 

 Devon County Council are exploring commissioning ap-
proaches that would aim to improve and retain local place-
ment sufficiency for Devon children in care who require 
placements within a residential children’s home. 

 The quality of Devon’s childrens homes has increased from 
2013 to July 2018. Devon County Council oversee a quality 
assurance and monitoring process that has contributed to-
wards improving, supporting and overseeing quality of provi-
sions where Devon children are placed across the independ-
ent sector. 

 

Opportunities for Development 
 Continue to work collaboratively with independent sector 

providers to sustain and improve quality of residential chil-
dren’s homes in the area. 

 Promote peer support, shared training and development op-
portunities across the market.  

 Continue to work collaboratively with independent sector 
providers to develop , improve and manage risk surrounding 
workforce. This could include capitalizing on opportunities 
linked to apprenticeship levy for instance.  

 Achieve greater connection  to the Proud to Care Campaign.  

 Continue to work in partnership with neighboring authorities 
in approaches taken. 

 Engagement and collaborative working with independent sec-
tor providers in response to a market development plan en-
suring needs of more Devon young people can be met locally.  

 Increase availability of residential beds available locally to 130 
to meet demand and needs of Devon children and children 
being placed by neighboring authorities. 

 Increase the number of Devon children placed in Devon place-
ments.  

Useful weblinks  

 

14. Residential Children’s Homes  

Page 23



 

 

20 

15.  Supported Living Options for Children in Care & Care Leavers aged 16 plus  

Care leavers in Devon benefit from access to a wide range of 

suitable accommodation. A range of housing options are availa-

ble including:- foster care, supported and semi supported ac-

commodation, supported lodgings and independent accommo-

dation. Young people are helped to prepare for having their own 

tenancy through the support, with a focus on achieving success-

ful transition to independent living. 

There are a number of young people in Devon who benefit from 

arrangements such as ‘Staying Put’ within their foster place-

ments and in some cases young people benefit from a similar 

arrangement within supported accommodation. 

In addition to housing options commissioned through the provid-

er market, Devon operate internal services to aid in the provision 

of services for young people aged 16 and 17 years. This includes 

‘Devon Young People’s Accommodation Service’. 

Up until March 2019 supported accommodation placements for 
children in care & eligible care leavers aged 16 plus are contract-
ed through a Framework agreement with Peninsula Authorities. 
This type of support is available for young people who are ready 
to live in an environment where they require support but not 
care. 
 
At August 2018 there were 27 providers on the Peninsula frame-
work agreement for the provision of supported accommodation 
with a potential capacity of around 756 placements. Of this po-
tential capacity round 435 of these placements are located in 
Devon. 
 
At August 2018, there were 59 young people aged 16 to 19 years 
who are children in care or care leavers placed in supported ac-
commodation placements. 69% (42 young people) were living in 
Devon, 12% (7 young people) were placed outside of the Penin-
sula. In addition, 39 of Devon’s children in care or care leavers 
were placed with Devon Young People’s Accommodation Service 
and 52 care leavers were placed with former foster carers in 
‘Staying Put’ arrangements. 
 
Additional support is also commissioned for young people at risk 
of homelessness. In 2016/17, 288 young people aged 16  and 17 
years received support hours while placed with a supported ac-
commodation provider with a DCC contract. The accommodation 
is paid for through Housing Benefit or the young person’s own 
means. These young people are not all children in care, some 
may be children in need or care leavers (see section 15). 

 
Factors currently impacting upon  
sufficiency in Devon:- 
There is oversupply in this area of the market, which has seen 
rapid growth in provision over the last four years. Through our 
robust quality assurance work and whole service safeguarding 
interventions n this unregulated market, we have established 
areas of whole market improvement. This has shaped our com-
missioning intentions, tender design for the future, our market 
development and individual provider strategic conversations. 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What Went Well  
The market is very diverse and some provision is achieving good 
outcomes for complex young people, offering flexible and bespoke 
support. Some providers work well to prepare young people for 
adulthood and independence. Feedback from young people shows 
this to be an area of development which has been strengthened in 
specifications and quality assurance framework (QAF) and therefore 
contract monitoring. 

 
Opportunities for Development  
 Devon County Council want to work with a market of providers 

skilled in meeting the needs of young people with multiple vul-
nerabilities and able to prepare them and support them to tran-
sition to independence. 

 
 We have reviewed our QAF and will be implementing a re-

freshed QAF through tenders during this year. This will include:- 

 Assessing the provider’s ability to deliver a flexible and 
personalised approach to support in placement. 

 Stepping down support, to enable young people to ob-
tain the practical skills needed to live independently and 
participate within their local communities. 

 Enable young people to seek education, employment or 
training opportunities. 

 

 Devon County Council are developing a Local Offer for Care 
Leavers in line with statutory responsibilities. We will be engag-
ing with young people about this. This will further shape com-
missioning intentions. Once published we will write to all care 
leavers and other 21-24 year olds to tell them about the sup-
port that they can access. 

Figure 26:- Overview of Care Leavers in Suitable Accommodation Options   

“We need more training to prepare us for life after sup-
ported accommodation. Training needs to be at differ-

ent levels so we can build on what we already know. We 
want to know what help we’re entitled to from people 

like Job Centre Plus”. 
Children in Care/ Care Leavers  aged 16 plus. 

Page 24



 

 

21 

16.  Support for Young People Presenting as Homeless  or at Risk of Homelessness 

Useful web links  

https://www.standupspeakup.org.uk/localoffer/ 

Devon County Council and Devon District Councils work within a 
joint protocol to agree appropriate accommodation and source 
support for eligible young people aged 16 and 17 years or care 
leavers at risk of homelessness. These young people often have a 
range of needs and are often vulnerable as described in section 6. 
Accommodation sourced is funded through housing benefit or 
rent contributions from the young people. 
 
Devon County Council currently fund and commission a contract 
for 968 support hours per week, this can include support received 
within accommodation provided or as floating support. 
 
In 2016/17, 288 young people accessed the support hours con-
tract. The average time spent supporting a young person on this 
contract was 35 weeks. 
 
Devon has a larger geographic boundary, these services are com-
missioned throughout and capacity is available across Mid, East, 
North and South Devon localities. Some providers bolster this 
further through the provision of community hubs to increase ac-
cessibility for support. 
 
Through our engagement with young people as part of the com-
missioning process we have established areas of service re-design. 
This led to a focus on prevention of homelessness and working 
with the risks young people present to prevent onward vulnera-
bility. This includes preparation for independence and adulthood. 
 
Therefore, the contracted service from Autumn 18 will offer 900 
support hours per week and in addition provide a service focused 
on supporting young people at risk of homelessness to return 
home and/or prevent homelessness through intervention and 
mediation with families. 
 

Factors currently impacting upon sufficiency 

in Devon includes:- 
Affordability of accommodation for young people who want to 

move on to independent living after living in supported ac-

commodation options. This is due to privately rented accom-

modation being expensive, difficulty engaging landlords to 

move young people into private rented accommodation, 

higher competition due to increased numbers seeking shared 

accommodation through housing benefit , differences in level 

of need to access supported accommodation as a child and as 

an adult. 

Affordability of supported accommodation places for young 

people who are receiving low wages, apprenticeship wages, 

employed on 0 hours contracts. 

Specialist providers of support hours for single young men lim-

ited to one provider in Exeter. 55.6% of support hours in Exe-

ter have been with specialist providers for young women or 

young parents. 

 

What Went Well  
 In 2017 Devon County Council and the Devon District Coun-

cils agreed a joint working protocol to prevent homeless-
ness for young people aged 16 and 17 years old with clearly 
defined pathways and processes for support both to pre-
vent homelessness in families, where possible and to sup-
port young people who have become homeless to be sup-
ported to return home, to family or friends or through 
planned and supported access to a sustainable housing 
option to meet their needs.  

 

 Support hours being funded currently by Devon County 
Council are being well utilised and services have not oper-
ated waiting lists. 

 
Opportunities for Development  

 Commission services for the provision of support hours to 
assist eligible young people at risk of homelessness to re-
turn home and/or prevent homelessness through interven-
tion and mediation with families or to assist those living in 
supported accommodation to allow them to move on ap-
propriately. 

  

 Through contract monitoring and quality assurance frame-
work (QAF ) ensure that the service is delivered in line with 
service re-design from Autumn 2018. This includes:- 

 Provision of personalised and early support through 
a multi-agency response. 

 Providers with the right expertise to meet needs and 
vulnerabilities of young people. 

 Enabling young people to return home or move on 
to suitable accommodation. 

 Enabling young people to seek and attend employ-
ment, education or training opportunities. 

 Enabling young people to live independently having 
been prepared for adulthood. 

 

 Increase number of affordable accommodation options for 
young people to move onto. Including independent living 
after living in supported accommodation. 

 

 Continue work with District Councils on implementing 
Council Tax discounts for Care Leavers. 

 
 

Page 25

https://www.standupspeakup.org.uk/localoffer/


 

 

22 

17. Placements for Disabled Children and Short Breaks 

Parents have told us they want for their children , care that is close to 
home, linked to their communities  and that is personalised.  
 
In addition, significant legislative and policy change concerning SEND 
and services for disabled children and the increasing demographics of 
disabled children both in terms of number and complexity of need is 
driving a review  and in some cases re-design of services for disabled 
children and their families. With an increasing focus towards personlisa-
tion that provides families with greater choice, control and flexibility to 
purchase services and access support for disabled children to best meet 
their individual needs from their home or local communities. As part of 
this Integrated Personal Commissioning Approach , Devon are develop-
ing their offer of personal budgets across education, health and social 
care. 
 
At January 2017 there were 99 children in residential school placements 
as a result of their more complex needs, including autism and challeng-
ing behaviours. 59 in maintained special schools, 44 of those are within 
county and 14 are out of county. 31 children were in Independent 
Schools and Colleges with a residential placement. Of these 31 only 10 
were within Devon County Council, although many were located within 
the Peninsula area.  
 
Many disabled children are placed within Devon and are able to attend 
local education provision. Devon currently has a range of overnight pro-
vision for disabled children, including:- residential short breaks & family 
based short breaks; 52 residential placements ; special school place-
ments.  
 
 

Factors currently impacting upon sufficiency in 

Devon includes:-  
 Provision has struggled to sufficiently met the increasingly complex 

behaviours of  disabled children. Particularly for children with au-

tism at the more complex end of the spectrum.   

 Expertise and knowledge base of workforce  in meeting needs of 

disabled children displaying complex behaviours and difficulties in 

recruiting quality and experienced registered managers/ leadership 

has also impacted upon independent providers in the market. 

 Parents have reported in the past a difficulty in knowing who to 

speak to, where to get information and how to access services. 

 

What Went Well  
 Devon County Council are working closely with partners, 

particularly in education and health, to develop more per-
sonalised, community-based provision which reduces the 
need for children to be cared for away from home and 
have engaged with disabled children and young people 
and their families to inform the design of systems of ser-
vices and to co-design strategic visions and priorities con-
tained within our SEND strategy, for instance. 

 Devon continue to work with children, families and part-
ners to develop the Local Offer promoting this as a key 
mechanism by which parents can gain information and 
advice and in accordance with SEND reforms. 

 Development and monitoring of action plans where con-
cerns are identified about the quality of provision and 
hosting Peninsula provider events to facilitate in improv-
ing and developing the workforce.  

 Commissioning approach designed and adopted to make 
best use of resources and equipment providing a more 
streamlined service for disabled children.  

 Devon have published Positive Behaviour Support guid-
ance/ policy.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Opportunities for Development  
 Work collaboratively with partners to develop provision 

of 52 week placements.  

 Continuing to consult with young people, parents and 
families to develop and co-design  sensory services  to 
best meet sensory needs of children. 

 Continue to develop community based offer/ services 
available to disabled children and young people.  

 Continue to further develop and improve  quality assur-
ance framework and process monitoring  for community 
based provision available to disabled children and young 
people complementing Integrated Personal Commission-
ing approaches. 

 Develop short breaks statement that will be hosted on 
our Local Offer.  

Useful web links  

 https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?

CId=133&MId=2134&Ver=4 

 https://new.devon.gov.uk/educationandfamilies/special-educational-needs-and-

disability-send-local-offer 

 https://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/children-and-young-people/how-people-have

-influenced-services-103501 

Page 26



 

 

23 

18. Commissioning Approach  

Joint Commissioning  
Devon Children and Families Partnership has high ambitions for all of Devon’s children and young peo-
ple. We believe that “Devon’s future prosperity, success and ultimate sustainability depends upon the 
education, health and wellbeing of our children and young people today.”  The Devon Children and 
Families Partnership wants to ensure children and families can get the right support, in the right place 
at the right time.  
 
Northern, Eastern & Western Devon CCG, South Devon & Torbay CCG and Devon County Council are 
committed to making the experience of childhood and early adulthood a good one. By ensuring children and young people are given the 
best chance to reach their full potential, to do this we need to work together making sure the whole system is pulling in the same direc-
tion. 
 
Partners are committed to working together wherever possible as this allows us to bring together knowledge, skills and ideas which gives 
us the greatest opportunity of commissioning services which are best able to meet the needs of children and their families and carers. The 
Children’s Joint Commissioning Group will regularly meet and take responsibility for identifying priorities and  actions for our commission-
ing teams, both individually and collectively. This could be recommissioning current contracts or identifying new opportunities in areas 
where we have identified services could be improved. This group will also want to hear directly from children and young people and their 
families through effective engagement and consultation, moving towards co-design of services wherever possible and appropriate. 
 
In order to plan jointly for children in care with additional and complex needs partners apply the following principles:- 

 We want to focus on the strengths that all families have and engage in different conversations which help us jointly identify 
what support will make a difference 

 We want to strengthen our Early Help system to provide the right support at the right time and in the right place as this en-
sures the most efficient and fair use of the resources that we have. 

 We want to ensure that all commissioned services are supported to focus on how we improve the experience of those who 
access their service. 

 We want to ensure that there is a comprehensive offer of support which is responsive, flexible and accessible to children, 
young people and their families within their own communities wherever possible. 

 
Our Joint Commissioning Approach for Children with SEND 
Joint commissioning partners work together to ensure integrated services are available for children with SEND.  This includes joint commis-
sioning Community Health and wellbeing Services through the use of Section 75 arrangements.  To strategically aligning services and cre-
ating the environment for co-operation.  This happens at all levels of the system from the work of the Sustainability and Transformation 
Plan ( STP) for children to the agreement of joint funding for individual care and support packages.   
 
We can demonstrate our delivery of the duties contained within the SEND Code of Practice (2014) concerning how partners work together, 
provide services for children and young people from 0-25 years.  This includes how we make arrangements for securing EHCP statements 
and secure provision set out in EHCP plans jointly as well as agreeing joint commissioning for personal budgets.  
 
This is delivered through the strategic and operational commissioning of services.  We have in place a Joint commissioning Group of the 
Devon Children and Families Partnership.  This is responsible for the strategic commissioning and integration of services.  This group has 
representation from CCG, Public Health, Communities, District Council, Office of the Police Crime Commissioner and Childrens Services. In 
addition we have a range of multi-agency panels for complex care, EHCP’s and decisions about resources where partners work together 
using agreed and published funding formula to determine packages of care and support for individual children. Where ever possible these 
resources are made available to children and families through personal budget and direct payments with a 7%  increase in the take up of 
this from April 2017 to September 2018. 
 
These panels continue to be under review to improve how we work together. All progress and action is being overseen by Devon’s SEND 
Improvement Board.  

Useful web links  

 https://new.devon.gov.uk/educationandfamilies/special-educational-needs-and-

disability-send-local-offer 

Page 27



 

 

YOUR LOGO HERE 

Appendix 1– National Drivers  

There are a number of pieces  of national legislation, guidance and regulatory requirements  setting out the Local Authorities du-

ties  in securing placements of a high quality and diversity  such that the needs of their children and young people can be appro-

priately met whilst remaining as close to home as is  possible and practicable.   These have been summarised below:-  

Legislation/ Guid-

ance / Regulation  

Relevance  Implications in practice  

Section 22G  

Children Act (1989) 

Sufficiency duty– as far as is reasonably practicable to ensure there is 

sufficient accommodation for  those children that meets their needs 

and is within their Local Authority area.  

 

Sufficiency guidance states :- Local  Authorities should include in 

relevant commissioning strategies their plans for meeting the suffi-

ciency duty  (April 2010) 

Working with their partners, Local Authorities must be in a position 

to secure, where reasonably practicable, sufficient accommodation 

for Children Looked After in their Local Authority area (April 2011).  

 

Children Act (2008) defines sufficiency as, “a whole system approach 

which delivers early intervention and preventative work to help sup-

port children and their families where possible, as well as providing 

better services for children if they do become looked after. For those 

who are looked after, Local Authorities and their Children’s Trust 

partners should seek to secure a number of providers and a range of 

services, with the aim of meeting the wide-ranging needs of looked 

after children and young people within their local area.”  

 

 

Requirement for the Local Authority to work with 

others to ensure enough placements are available in 

the local area to meet the different needs of chil-

dren and young people.   

Ofsted inspections 

and regulations of 

children’s homes, 

special schools, fos-

tering agencies and 

parent and child 

residential assess-

ment centres.  

Regulatory and inspection framework  Set clear standards for delivery of different place-

ment types to ensure quality and best possible out-

comes can be achieved by child or young person in 

placement. Local authority specifications and ar-

rangements will use the national regulations as key 

reference points.  

Ofsted inspections of individual providers used by 

Local Authority as part of quality assurance process-

es in place for placements commissioned.   

Southwark  Judge-

ment (2009) 

Duty to take vulnerable young people aged 16 plus into the care of 

the Local Authority.  

Housing, and Children’s Social Care must assess 

vulnerable homelessness young people to ensure 

they are offered the most appropriate service to 

meet their needs. If they are assessed as vulnerable 

they will be accommodated—placements will need 

to be made available to meet needs.  

Page 28



 

 

Appendix 1  National Drivers  

Legislation/ Guidance / Regula-

tion  

Relevance  Implications in practice  

Children & Families Act (2014)  Duty to support Staying Put placements  Introduced a legal duty for Local Authorities to support young peo-

ple  with option to stay with their former foster carers when they 

reach 18 years., as long as it is considered this is in the best inter-

ests of the young person.  

Children & Families Act  (2014) 

SEND Code of Practice (2014) 

Duty to work with key partners in assess-

ment, planning and provision of services  

Education, health and social care professionals to work jointly to 

assess and make a plan for children and young people with special 

education needs and disabilities. From age of 0-25 years to meet 

their needs  

Care Act (2014) Duty to assess as part of transition arrange-

ments for those with additional needs.  

If it is likely a child will have needs and continue to require support 

when they are 18 years and over a ‘child’ needs assessment’  will be 

required.  

Children Act (1989) updated 

January 2015  (planning transi-

tion to adulthood for care leav-

ers Volume 3) 

 

Children Leaving Care Act (2000) 

Duty to support staying put placements  Local Authorities need to consider  best means of achieving transi-

tion to adulthood for young people in care. This should be a gradu-

ated process.  

Adoption and Children Act 

(2002) 

 

Special Guardianship Regula-

tions (2005)  

Legal frameworks Linked to Local Authorities duties to provide adoption  services and 

support services  and permanence options for children in care as an 

alternative to long term care .  

NHS England  

Transforming Care  

Building the Right Support 

(2015) 

Sets out expectations for health related 

planning and support for children and young 

people diagnosed with autism, or who have 

learning disabilities or mental health condi-

tions or those presenting challenging behav-

iour.  

Planning to improve health and care services to enable young peo-

ple to live in communities., in their local area accessing the right 

support.  

NHS Planning Guidance (2015) 

Sustainability & Transformation 

Plans/ Partnerships  

NHS England National Programme   Local authorities and health colleagues working on a 5 year plan to 

transform health and care services for local people so they are fit 

for the future.  

 

Devon’s STP identifies 7 priority areas :- ill health prevention and 

early intervention, integrated care model, primary care, mental 

health and learning disabilities, acute hospital and specialist ser-

vices, increasing service productivity and children and young peo-

ple .  

Page 29



 

 

YOUR LOGO HERE 

Appendix 2 Glossary   

Care Leaver: - This is a young person typically aged between 16-25 years who is currently or has previously been in the care of the 
Local Authority. There are four recognised groups of care leavers as identified in the Children Leaving Care Act (2000), these in-
clude eligible, relevant, former relevant and qualifying care leavers.  
 

 Eligible Care Leavers include young people aged 16-17 years who are currently in care or have been in care for more 
than 13 weeks since they were 14.  

 Relevant Care Leavers include young people aged 16-17 years who were previously eligible but have now left care.  

 Former Relevant Care Leavers include young people aged 18 years plus who were previously eligible or relevant. 

 Qualifying Care Leavers include young people who may have been privately fostered, or were recognised as a child in 
need, or aged 16-25 and was a child in care prior to a special guardianship order being made, or were 16 or 17-year 
olds who have spent less than 13 weeks in care since they were 14 but at least 24 hours in care as 16-17-year-old, or 
are aged 16-25 years and have been looked after in planned short break sessions. 

 
Children Act:-Legislation which allocates duties to local authorities, courts, parents and other agencies in the United Kingdom, to 
ensure children and safeguarded and their welfare promoted.  
 
Children in Care -This is a child or young person to whom the Local Authority provides accommodation and care on a continued 
basis and over a period of a time which is longer than 24 hours. According to the Childrens Act (1989) this could be as a result of: - 

 The absence of any person with parental responsibility for them, or those children who have been lost or abandoned, or in the 
event the person who had been looking after them is no longer able to provide suitable care or accommodation (section 20).  

 Children in police protection, detention or remand (section 21). 

 A court order, interim order or order for the emergency protection of children (section 31, 38 and 44). 

 Respite care which a child may be receiving which exceeds 75 days in a year whereby they are away from home in a residential 
placement . 

 
Clinical Commissioning Groups:- Clinically led groups fulfilling statutory functions for the NHS, they are responsible for the plan-
ning and commissioning of health and care services available in local areas. Clinical commissioning groups replaced Primary Care 
Trusts after the publication of the Health and Social Care Act (2012). There are currently two clinical commissioning groups in Dev-
on the Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group and South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning 
Group.  
 
Commissioning:- The process of assessing needs, planning prioritising, designing and then purchasing required services and then 
monitoring and evaluating quality of services being delivered and service model being adopted to ensure value for money and best  
possible outcomes to be achieved. 
 
Devon Children and Families Partnership: - A multi-agency partnership made up of many organisations that set out and imple-
ment key priorities for children, young people and families in Devon.  
 
Disabled Child or Young Person: -According to the Children Act (1989) ‘a child is disabled if he is blind, deaf or dumb or suffers 
from mental disorder of any kind or is substantially and permanently handicapped by illness, injury or congenital deformity or such 
other disability as may be prescribed”. 
 
Early Help: – Early Help refers to the practice of supporting families at an early stage or when stepping down from Children’s Social 
Work. The early help infrastructure is made up of service users, community resources, universal service providers and targeted 
services working together to enable families to manage their own dilemmas and solve their own problems, making whatever 
changes are necessary to secure the well-being of their children, enabling appropriate risk management in the community and a 
proportionate response to risk and need. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 30



 

 

Neighbouring authority:- Local authorities which are on the Devon County Council boundary. Devon Council Council’s neighbouring au-
thorities include Cornwall, Torbay, Somerset, Plymouth, Torbay and Dorset. 
 
Peninsula partners/ board/ authorities: A group of local authorities that Devon County Council work with to provide services for children 
across the local area. This group is made up of Torbay Council, Plymouth City Council, Somerset County Council, Devon County Council and 
previously Cornwall County Council.  
 
Personal budgets: - Resources that can be used flexibly to support a child or young person with their education, health or care needs as 
identified in their care and support plan. This does not usually include universal services that all children and young people can access but 
may include support that needs to be put in place for a child or young person with SEN or a disability. This enables greater choice and con-
trol. Personal budgets can be allocated in different ways. Further information and definition can be accessed on the Devon County Council  
websites.  
 
Quality Assurance Framework: - A structure setting out key performance indicators and quality monitoring procedure between the pro-
vider and Devon County Council including suspension protocols for delivery of this service. 
 
Special Guardianship Order :- A private law order and forms part of the Adoption & Children Act (2002) that allows a child to remain with-
in the family unit or another significant person  offering an alternative to long-term foster placements or adoption for children who cannot 
live with their birth parents for whatever reason.  
 
Statistical Neighbours:- Other local authorities that have similar characteristics to Devon County Council and can be referred to for pur-
poses of comparison in  ways that are more accurate and meaningful.  
 
Supported Living Options: - Placement within a residence for an eligible young person aged 16 years plus, where there will be a continu-
um of support available to facilitate the young person on their journey to living independently and in their preparation for adult life.  
 
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC):- The Home Office describe as a child or young person who is less than 18 years old who 
has arrived in the UK without a responsible adult, is not being cared for by an adult who by law or custom has responsibility to do so, is 
separated from both parents and has applied for asylum in the United Kingdom in his/her own right. These children and young people can 
be provided care by the local authority as a child in care (see definition above) or in some cases a child in need as described in section 17 
of the Childrens Act (1989).  
 
Welfare Secure:-Involves a secure accommodation placement provided to children for the purposes of restricting their liberty under Sec-
tion 25 of the Children Act (1989).  

Page 31





 

1 
 

Impact Assessment 
Version 2017 
To publish, please send a dated PDF to impactassessment-mailbox@devon.gov.uk 
 

Assessment of: Sufficiency Strategy of Placements and Services for Children in Care, Care Leavers and 

Disabled Children.  

Service: Children’s Services. 

 

Head of Service: Fiona Fleming, Head of Commissioning, Devon County Council 

Date of sign off by Head of Service/version: Version 2 agreed by Fiona Fleming 18/10/18 and by Jo Olsson 23/10/18 

Assessment carried out by (incl. job title): Children’s Commissioning, Children’s Services, Devon County Council 

 

Section 1 - Background 

Description: This assessment aims to consider the impact of the Sufficiency Strategy for Placements for Children in Care and Care 

Leavers produced by Devon County Council’s Children’s Services.  

Section 22G of the Children Act (1989) sets out a ‘sufficiency duty’ for all Local Authorities. The Children Act (2008) defines 

sufficiency as, “a whole system approach which delivers early intervention and preventative work to help support children 

and their families where possible, as well as providing better services for children if they do become looked after. For those 

who are looked after, Local Authorities and their Children’s Trust partners should seek to secure a number of providers and 

a range of services, with the aim of meeting the wide-ranging needs of looked after children and young people within their 

local area.” 

Local Authorities are required to take steps to secure, so far as is reasonably practicable, sufficient accommodation for 

children in care within their local area. In 2010, the Statutory Guidance for the Sufficiency Duty was issued. This guidance 

P
age 33

mailto:impactassessment-mailbox@devon.gov.uk


 

2 
 

is explicit in placing a duty on Local Authorities to act strategically to address gaps in provision by ensuring that they 

include, in relevant commissioning strategies, their plans for meeting the sufficiency duty. 

Sufficiency is approached in collaboration with our partners across the area, including our Peninsula Commissioning 

Partners and other bordering authorities, alongside our local response to national priorities that support different 

approaches to supporting children in care.  

A sufficiency strategy has been produced which is informed by these principles and outlines how we will ensure that 

children and young people who need to be in care can grow up in high quality provision that is well matched to and 

effectively meets their immediate and long-term needs and provides them with stability and permanence at the earliest 

opportunity. This sufficiency strategy also describes Devon’s ambitions and how we will achieve the best for our children 

and young people in care, disabled children and care leavers in light of our understanding of their needs, now and in the 

future and of local provision. It links to the Council’s wider strategy for children in care, which also sets out Devon’s 

Corporate Parenting arrangements and position on other significant areas, such as how we achieve permanence for our 

children in care and meet the needs of care leavers. As corporate parents Devon County Council is committed to ensuring 

children and young people in care achieve the best possible outcomes and are well prepared and supported to step 

confidently into adulthood with the support they need. Key to this is that when they cannot remain within their family, 

children and young people are provided with permanence and stability in care in settings which meet their changing needs 

over time. 

The sufficiency strategy thus identifies what is working well, alongside, identifying commissioning intentions and priorities 

for development going forward to ensure we achieve the best outcomes for our children in care, disabled children and care 

leavers where placements and support are required.  

Reason for change/review: Devon County Council holds a statutory ‘sufficiency duty’ under Section 22G of the Children Act and the Sufficiency 

Statutory Guidance on Securing Sufficient Accommodation for Looked After Children (2010) is explicit in placing a duty on 

Local Authorities to act strategically to address gaps in provision by ensuring that they include, in relevant commissioning 

strategies, their plans for meeting the sufficiency duty. 

The sufficiency strategy produced aims to respond to these duties and responsibilities. 

 

Section 2 - Impacts, options and recommendations 

P
age 34



 

3 
 

See sections 3, 4 and 5 for background analysis 

 

Options Appraisal and 

Recommendations: 

Recommendations for Cabinet members (please see Cabinet Report for further details) to welcome and endorse the 

Children’s Services Sufficiency Strategy for Placements for Children in Care & Care Leavers and agree arrangements for 

this report to be published on the Council’s website. 

Commissioning intentions and priorities identified within Children’s Services Sufficiency Strategy aim to: - 

• Promote Early Help by strengthening approaches and provision for children and young people on the edge of care, 

supporting young people at an earlier point and at the right time. 

• Prepare our children and young people for adulthood by developing the market and ensuring effective quality 

assurance for supported accommodation providers. 

• Improve outcomes for Children in Care and Care Leavers by ensuring they develop the skills and abilities they need 

to move onto independence with confidence following personlised support, can influence the care and placement 

they receive, increase variety of placement choices in the local area.  

• Improving stability and permanence of placements to help children and young people feel safe and build resilience 

whilst ensuring access to high quality local provision, wrap around support services and increasing the number of 

adoptive placements and special guardianship orders.  

• Increase in access to family-based care by increasing fostering sufficiency and friends and family fostering options, 

ensuring support for complex needs and emergency placements and  where residential care is needed use this in 

an outcome focused and time limited way. 

• Reducing the impact of crisis care for children in crisis and/ or with high risk behaviours.  

Social/equality impacts 

(summary): 

Commissioning intentions and priorities identified within the Sufficiency Strategy produced have the potential to achieve 

positive impacts for our children in care, care leavers and disabled children using services and/ or accessing types of 

placement.  

Ensuring there is an appropriate number and variety of placement types and services that are available to Devon’s children 

in care, disabled children and care leavers that best meet their needs and the demand for placements and that are also of 

high quality and available locally has the potential to impact positively on their self-esteem, wider emotional health and 

wellbeing as well as providing opportunities for them to stay connected to their local communities where appropriate.  

P
age 35



 

4 
 

Being in a stable and local placement and supporting families through edge of care services so children are able to stay at 

home and be brought up in their families will help young people to achieve the best possible outcomes in all aspects of 

their early lives.  

Better support for our children in care and care leavers aged 16 plus will mean young people are able to achieve and live 

positively as young adults and feel empowered to contribute positively to society and feel included within their local 

communities having acquired the skills they need to do this successfully.  

Priorities to recruit more foster carers to provide more foster placements for children in care who are disabled will have a 

positive impact. It will ensure equitable access to the option of a fostering placement for disabled children and will provide 

them with more opportunities to be brought up as part of a foster family.  

Feedback from children and young people using services and in placements will be regularly obtained by service providers 

and through the participation and engagement processes operating across Devon County Council. This will empower 

young people to have their voices heard, feel valued and feel confident as to how they can influence the development of 

services/ placements commissioned thus impacting on the care received. The terms and conditions of our contracts and 

quality assurance processes referenced within the Sufficiency Strategy helps us to oversee services to ensure they safe 

and high-quality services and placements for our children and young people 

Environmental impacts 

(summary): 

Increasing the availability of placements for children in care, care leavers and disabled children in the local area will mean 

fewer placements will be needed outside the local area. This could help to reduce air pollution as professionals visiting 

children in care and care leavers placed will not have to travel out of the local area. 

Economic impacts 

(summary): 

Actions that could be taken in response to the commissioning intentions and priorities included within the Sufficiency 

Strategy have the potential to bring about positive economic impacts.  

The knowledge base and skills of service providers could be increased allowing them to provide services in the most 

effective way for our disabled children who display challenging behaviour and support our children with complex needs and 

engaging in high risk behaviours for instance. 

There is a possibility of new provision opening and/ or increases in the capacity of existing provision locally creating job 

opportunities, in order to ensure delivery of services and placements to meet demand and need of our children in care, 

care leavers and disabled children over time and create opportunities for local businesses. 

P
age 36



 

5 
 

Other impacts (partner 

agencies, services, DCC 

policies, possible 

‘unintended 

consequences’): 

None identified. 

How will impacts and 

actions be monitored? 

The Sufficiency Strategy will be subject to an annual review and refresh.  

Action plans responding to the commissioning intentions and priorities contained within the Children’s Services Sufficiency 

Strategy produced will be monitored and oversee by Children’s Services Senior Leadership Team.  

 

  

P
age 37



 

6 
 

Background Analysis 

This section describes how relevant questions and issues have been explored during the options appraisal. 

Section 3 - Profile and views of stakeholders and people directly affected 

People affected: Children in Care and Care Leavers including those children and young people who are unaccompanied asylum seeking 

children (UASC);  disabled children and young people in care aged 0-25 years including those young people with special 

educational needs and disabilities (SEND)  and  eligible young people aged 16-17 years or care leavers at risk of 

homelessness, who are being provided with support and/or accommodation by the Local Authority now or in the future, living 

across the Devon localities of Exeter, North, Mid & East & South Devon.  

Diversity profile and needs 

assessment of affected 

people: 

Reach: - The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment(JSNA) Devon Overview (2018) indicates Devon has a population of around 

780,000. Around 163,800 are children and young people aged 0-19 years.  

The 2018 JSNA also states “According to the 2011 Census, 8.6% of residents in Devon reported having a health problem or 

disability that limits their day-to-day activities a lot, and has lasted or is expected to last, at least 12 months.  It is estimated that 

14,800 people have a Learning Disability and 7,500 people have autism (National Autistic Society)” (p91).1 

“Devon has a higher than average proportion of children with SEN; and especially of children identified as having 
SEN relating to social, emotional, behavioural and mental health needs. In terms of future need, based on 
population projections, there may be approximately 400-600 more children with disabilities in 2021 than there 
are at present in Devon. There may be an additional small increase in children with complex needs due to 
factors such as increased survival of preterm babies; and a continuing rise in children with diagnosed autistic 
spectrum disorders due to historical under-recognition.” (p5)2 

At September 2018, there were 727 Devon children in care. At August 2018, there were 528 Devon care leavers. At April 2018 

Devon had 38 unaccompanied asylum-seeking children in their care. At 14th October 2018, there were 374 disabled children 

                                            
1 Direct quote from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Devon Overview (2018)  
 
2 Direct quote from Devon’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Children and Young People with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND), 2017. 

P
age 38



 

7 
 

and young people accessing the Disabled Children’s Social Work Service3. 79 are Children Looked After and 296 are Children 

in Need4. 

Experience: -Devon have a Children in Care Council and a Care Leavers forum to facilitate in hearing the voice of our Children 

in Care and Care Leavers. The function is overseen by Devon County Council’s Participation Team.  During 2016 and 2017 

these forums have explored children and young people’s experiences of placement stability and ‘What do I want from a 

placement?’ As well as engagement with Devon’s Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children to create a ‘Top Tips’ resource for 

carers providing placements. Examples of feedback obtained are included within the Sufficiency strategy produced. Young 

people residing in supported accommodation were consulted to inform the needs assessment for the re-tendering of the 

contract. NEW Devon and South Devon and Torbay CCG have also led a partnership approach to engage with parents, carers 

and children and young people with additional needs and disabilities and feedback has been used to inform procurement of 

Community, Health and Care services designed to support children with additional needs and disabilities 

(https://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/your-ccg/children-andyoung-people-100144). Feedback received from children and young 

people is included within the sufficiency strategy and has influenced commissioning intentions and priorities identified within the 

Sufficiency Strategy.  

Dependence: - Support and/or accommodation provided by the  Local Authority for our children in care, disabled children  and 

care leavers is of fundamental importance in providing them with specialist support and intervention that best meets their 

specific needs and allows them to meet milestones, make opportunities accessible to them whilst allowing them to achieve the 

best possible outcomes to ensure they are happy, healthy, safe and prepared for adulthood and independence.  

Other stakeholders 

(agencies etc.): 

Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) 

Devon County Council’s Children’s Services 

Peninsula Partners (Somerset County Council, Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council, Somerset County Council)  

Devon District Councils  

                                            
3 This does not include cases where only financial support is being accessed/ provided.  
4 The remainder are subject of Child Protection Plans. 

P
age 39

file:///C:/Users/fiona.fleming/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7N2GQ2LJ/(https:/www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/your-ccg/children-andyoung-people-100144


 

8 
 

Devon County Council Councillors 

Providers of placements including residential children’s homes, fostering, supported living options, welfare secure placements 

for disabled children and short break.  

Consultation process and 

results: 

Devon County Council’s Children’s Services have been listening to our Children in Care and working with providers and 
practitioners to determine the priorities for the sufficiency strategy.  A stage of further engagement was undertaken with the final 
draft of the strategy during September and October 2018 to allow us to test if the priorities we have set out address the issues 
that children and young people have been raised with us. At a partnership level we have shared the strategy with the Joint 
Commissioning Group of the Devon Children and Families Partnership and the Peninsula Commissioning Board. Providers 
have also been invited to attend focus sessions in October/ early November to test the commissioning intentions set out within 
the strategy.   
 
In addition, the strategy was reviewed as part of a Scrutiny Liaison Autumn Briefing session with Devon Councillors in October 

2018.   

Research and information 

used: 

• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Devon Overview (2018) 

• Devon’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Children and Young People with Special Educational Needs and 

Disabilities (SEND) 2018.  

• Community, Health and Care services consultation  https://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/your-ccg/children-andyoung-

people-100144  

• Power BI- Performance DashBoard 

 

Section 4a - Social Impacts 
 

Giving Due Regard to Equality and Human Rights 

The local authority must consider how people will be affected by the service, policy or practice.  In so doing we must give due regard to the need to: 

•         Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation  

•         Advance equality of opportunity and 

•         Foster good relations. 
 

P
age 40

https://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/your-ccg/children-andyoung-people-100144
https://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/your-ccg/children-andyoung-people-100144


 

9 
 

Where relevant, we must take into account the protected characteristics of age, disability, gender, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 

marriage and civil partnership, sexual orientation, race, and religion and belief.   

This means considering how people with different needs get the different services  they require and are not disadvantaged, and facilities are available to 

them on an equal basis in order to meet their needs; advancing equality of opportunity by recognising the disadvantages to which protected groups are 

subject and considering how they can be overcome.  

We also need to ensure that human rights are protected.  In particular, that people have: 

•         A reasonable level of choice in where and how they live their life and interact with others (this is an aspect of the human right to ‘private and family 

life’).   

•         An appropriate level of care which results in dignity and respect (the protection to a private and family life, protection from torture and the freedom of 

thought, belief and religion within the Human Rights Act and elimination of discrimination and the promotion of good relations under the Equality Act 

2010).  

•         A right to life (ensuring that nothing we do results in unlawful or unnecessary/avoidable death). 

The Equality Act 2010 and other relevant legislation does not prevent the Council from taking difficult decisions which result in service reductions or 

closures for example, it does however require the Council to ensure that such decisions are: 

•      Informed and properly considered with a rigorous, conscious approach and open mind, taking due regard of the effects on the protected characteristics 

and the general duty to eliminate discrimination, advance equality and foster good relations. 

•      Proportionate (negative impacts are proportionate to the aims of the policy decision) 

•      Fair  

•      Necessary  

•      Reasonable, and 

•      Those affected have been adequately consulted. 

 

P
age 41



 

10 
 

Characteristics In what way can you eliminate or reduce the potential 

for direct or indirect discrimination, harassment or 

disadvantage? 

Are there any lawful, reasonable and proportionate, 

unavoidable negative consequences? 

In what way can you advance equality (meet needs, 

encourage participation, make adjustments for disabled 

people, ‘close gaps’). 

In what way can you foster good relations between groups 

(tackle prejudice and promote understanding), if relevant? 

All residents (include generic 

equality provisions): 

 

What children and young people have told us has 

influenced the commissioning intentions and priorities 

identified within the Sufficiency Strategy. Opportunities 

are also being taken to further test this. This could 

positively impact on our children and young people to 

feel included, involved and valued by the Local Authority 

in helping to design and commission services to best 

support them.   

Commissioning intentions and priorities identified within the 

strategy will help to ensure there are an appropriate number 

and variety of placement types that are available to Devon’s 

children in care and care leavers that best meet their needs and 

the demand for placements. Where there are more local 

placements available to Devon’s children in care and care 

leavers that are personlised to best meet needs, this will result 

in greater placement stability. This could have a positive impact 

on children and young people who will feel safe, a sense of 

belonging, happy and will know where they stand. Local 

placements will mean fewer children and young people will 

need to be placed out of area allowing them to stay connected 

to their families and friends where appropriate reducing the 

likelihood of them feeling isolated or alone.  Being in a stable 

and local placement is also likely to improve children and young 

people’s emotional health and wellbeing including impacting 

positively on their self-esteem, their ability to feel included and 

willing to participate within the local community in which they 

are placed and facilitate in helping them to achieve the best 

possible outcomes in all aspects of their early lives.   

Age: 

 

 Commissioning intentions and priorities included within the 

strategy for support and accommodation services for children in 

care aged 16 plus, care leavers and eligible young people aged 

16 and 17 years at risk of homelessness will continue to 

improve services for young people allowing them to build 

P
age 42



 

11 
 

resilience and be best supported on their journey to adulthood 

and independence. Better support could mean young people 

are able to achieve and live positively as young adults and feel 

empowered to contribute positively to society and feel included 

within their local communities.  

Commissioning intentions and priorities aimed at increasing 

options for permanence will ensure children and young people 

have the opportunity to be brought up in families where they can 

feel safe, supported and happy. This has the potential to impact 

positively on their ability to achieve positive outcomes in all 

aspects of their lives. 

Disability (incl. sensory, 

mobility, mental health, 

learning disability, ill health) 

and carers of disabled 

people: 

Services and placements commissioned by Devon 

County Council and referenced within the Sufficiency 

Strategy will have service specifications that emphasise 

the expectation that Service Providers ensure services 

are accessible to disabled children. Service 

specifications commissioning services for disabled 

children will detail specific requirements and provisions 

for services this could include using appropriate 

communication methods to obtain feedback from 

disabled children and young people, use of specialist 

equipment and taking measures to enable disabled 

children and young people to participate in activities and 

achieve their highest potential.  

Priorities to recruit more foster carers to provide more foster 

placements for disabled children in care  will have a positive 

impact. It will ensure equitable access to the option of a 

fostering placement for disabled children and will provide them 

with more opportunities to be brought up as part of a foster 

family. This has the potential to impact positively on their ability 

to achieve positive outcomes in all aspects of their lives.  

Culture and ethnicity: 

nationality/national origin, 

skin colour, religion and 

belief: 

Service providers of all services designed and 

commissioned for our children in care, care leavers, 

disabled children will be expected to deliver services in a 

way which respects people on the basis of their culture 

and ethnicity. Services and placements commissioned by 

Devon County Council and referenced within the 

 

P
age 43



 

12 
 

Sufficiency Strategy will have service specifications that 

emphasise these requirements and that services to be 

provided are personlised to best meet needs, wishes and 

values of each individual child or young person. 

Sex, gender and gender 

identity (including men, 

women, non-binary and 

transgender people), and 

pregnancy and maternity 

(including women’s right to 

breastfeed). 

Service providers of all services designed and 
commissioned for our children in care, care leavers, 
disabled children will be expected to deliver services in a 
way which respects people on the basis of their sex, 
gender and gender identifies. Services and placements 
commissioned by Devon County Council and referenced 
within the Sufficiency Strategy will have service 
specifications that emphasise these requirements and 
that services to be provided are personlised to best meet 
needs, identify, wishes and values of each individual 
child or young person.  

 

Sexual orientation and 

marriage/civil partnership: 

Service providers of all services designed and 

commissioned for our children in care, care leavers, 

disabled children will be expected to deliver services in a 

way which respects people on the basis of their sexual 

orientation. Services and placements commissioned by 

Devon County Council and referenced within the 

Sufficiency Strategy will have service specifications that 

emphasise these requirements and that services to be 

provided are personlised to best meet needs of each 

individual child or young person. 

 

Other socio-economic factors 

such as families, carers, 

single people/couples, low 

income, vulnerability, 

education, reading/writing 

Intentions to improve, strengthen and invest in edge of 

care services will ensure children, young people and 

families receive support and intervention at earlier points. 

This will mean they are able to remain together with more 

children continuing to be brought up in their families. 

Earlier intervention and support will allow families to 

 

P
age 44



 

13 
 

skills, ‘digital exclusion’ and 

rural isolation. 

access the tools they need and build resilience to live 

and function safely and achieve positive outcomes.  

Human rights considerations: • Article 12 (respect for the views of the child): - Every child has the right to express their views, feelings and wishes in 
all matters affecting them, and to have their views considered and taken seriously. 

• Article 23 (children with a disability) A child with a disability has the right to live a full and decent life with dignity and, 
as far as possible, independence and to play an active part in the community. Governments must do all they can to 
support disabled children and their families. 

• Article 6 (life, survival and development) Every child has the right to life. Governments must do all they can to ensure 
that children survive and develop to their full potential. 

• Article 20 (children unable to live with their family).  If a child cannot be looked after by their immediate family, the 
government must give them special protection and assistance. Includes making sure the child is provided with 
alternative care that is continuous and respects child’s language, religion and culture. 

• Article 19 (protection from violence, abuse and neglect). Governments must do all they can to ensure that children 
are protected from all forms of violence, abuse, neglect and bad treatment by their parents or anyone else who looks 
after them.  

 

Supporting independence, wellbeing and resilience?  

Give consideration to the groups listed above and how they may have different needs. 

In what way can you support and create 

opportunities for people and communities (of place 

and interest) to be independent, empowered and 

resourceful? 

Providers of services and placements commissioned for children in care, care leavers and disabled 

children will need to employ the use of strategies and resources that means services are personlised 

to best support and meet their changing needs over time. This will include helping young people to 

acquire the skills, abilities and resilience to be independent. Feedback from children and young 

people using services and in placements will be regularly obtained by service providers and through 

the participation and engagement processes operating across Devon County Council. This will 

empower young people to have their voices heard, feel valued and feel confident as to how they can 

influence the development of services/ placements commissioned impacting on the care received.  

In what way can you help people to be safe, 

protected from harm, and with good health and 

wellbeing? 

All providers of services and placements commissioned for children in care, care leavers and 

disabled children will need demonstrate their ability to deliver safe and high-quality services for 

children and young people. The terms and conditions of our contracts and quality assurance 

P
age 45



 

14 
 

processes will facilitate in overseeing services to ensure they are delivered in ways that comply with 

safeguarding policy and procedure.  

Increasing the availability of placements, improving quality and stability of placements for children in 

care, care leavers and disabled children in the local area will promote positive health and wellbeing. 

This could include positive impacts on their self-esteem, their ability to feel included and sense of 

belongingness. Good health and wellbeing will facilitate in helping them to achieve the best possible 

outcomes in all aspects of their early lives.   

In what way can you help people to be connected, 

and involved in community activities? 

Increasing the availability of placements for children in care, care leavers and disabled children in the 

local area will mean children and young people are able to stay connected, feel a greater sense of 

inclusion and belongingness and therefore be better able to participate within opportunities across 

their local communities. 

 

Section 4b - Environmental impacts 

An impact assessment should give due regard to the following activities in order to ensure we meet a range of environmental legal duties.   

The policy or practice does not require the identification of environmental impacts using this Impact Assessment process because it is subject to (please 
select from the table below and proceed to the 4c, otherwise complete the environmental analysis table): 
 

 

  Devon County Council’s Environmental Review Process  

  Planning Permission  

  Environmental Impact Assessment  

  Strategic Environmental Assessment   

 

P
age 46



 

15 
 

 Describe any actual or potential negative 

consequences.  

(Consider how to mitigate against these). 

Describe any actual or potential neutral or positive 

outcomes. 

(Consider how to improve as far as possible). 

Reduce, reuse, recycle and 

compost:  

 None None 

Conserve and enhance wildlife:  None None 

Safeguard the distinctive 

characteristics, features and 

special qualities of Devon’s 

landscape:  

None None 

Conserve and enhance Devon’s 

cultural and historic heritage:  

None None 

Minimise greenhouse gas 

emissions:  

None Increasing the availability of placements for children in care, 

care leavers and disabled children in the local area will mean 

fewer placements will be needed outside the local area. This 

could help to reduce air pollution as professionals visiting 

children in care and care leavers placed will not have to travel 

out of the local area.  

Minimise pollution (including air, 

land, water, light and noise):  

None None 

Contribute to reducing water 

consumption:  

None None 

Ensure resilience to the future 

effects of climate change 

(warmer, wetter winters; drier, 

None 

 

None 

P
age 47



 

16 
 

hotter summers; more intense 

storms; and rising sea level):  

Other (please state below):  None None 

Section 4c - Economic impacts 

 Describe any actual or potential negative 

consequences.  

(Consider how to mitigate against these).  

 

Describe any actual or potential neutral or positive 

outcomes. 

(Consider how to improve as far as possible). 

Impact on knowledge and skills:  Actions that could be taken responding to the commissioning 

intentions and priorities in the Sufficiency Strategy could 

facilitate providers of placements and services to receive further 

increase knowledge base and skills to allow them to provide 

services in the most effective way for our disabled children who 

display challenging behaviour and our children with complex 

needs and engaging in high risk behaviours for instance.  

Impact on employment levels:  The possibility of new provision opening and/ or increases in the 

capacity of existing provision locally could result in an increase 

in staffing numbers. This could create job opportunities in 

ensuring delivery of services and placements to meet demand 

and need of our children in care, care leavers and disabled 

children over time.  

Impact on local business: Any commissioning opportunities linked to service 

areas referenced within the Sufficiency Strategy will 

enable a full range of suitable bidders for any 

The possibility of new provision opening and/ or increases in the 

capacity of existing provision locally to ensure delivery of 

services and placements to meet demand and need of our 

children in care, care leavers and disabled children over time 

could also create opportunities for local businesses (any building 

P
age 48



 

17 
 

provision and would include the option for consortia 

bids.  

opportunities for local contractors, utilities, food, cleaning 

services may be required locally). 

 

Section 4d -Combined Impacts 

Linkages or conflicts between 
social, environmental and 
economic impacts: 
  

 

 

Section 5 - ‘Social Value’ of planned commissioned/procured services: 

How will the economic, social and environmental 

well-being of the relevant area be improved 

through what is being proposed?  And how, in 

conducting the process of procurement, might 

that improvement be secured?  

Services and placements commissioned and/or provided to children in care, care leavers and 

disabled children will support young people to feel empowered and have broadened life skills  which 

could impact positively on their well-being and improve social value in years ahead. 

 

P
age 49





CT/18/09
Cabinet

14 November 2018
BUDGET MONITORING 2018/19
Report of the County Treasurer

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Cabinet (and confirmation under the provisions of the Council's 
Constitution) before taking effect.

Recommendation: 

a) The Committee notes the forecast overspending of £8.15 millions and the need 
to take action to contain and reduce this projection.

b) The Committee notes the proposed savings initiatives and the potential impact. 

1. Introduction

1.1. This report outlines the financial position and forecast for the Authority at month 6 (to 
the end of September) of the financial year.

1.2. The total projected overspending at month 6 is forecast at £8.15 millions an increase 
of £50,000 from month 4.  However this position assumes a request to carry forward   
£2.4 millions to next years Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) will be agreed by the 
Devon Education Forum. 

1.3. Outlined in section 8 are proposals to reduce the projected overspending.  

2. Revenue Expenditure Adult Care and Health Services

2.1. Adult Care and Health services are forecast to underspend by £488,000, at month 4 
the service was forecasting a break even outturn. This position takes into account 
£455,000 of management action yet to be achieved but assessed as achievable.

2.2. Adult Care Operations is forecasting to underspend by £738,000 an increase of 
£550,000 from the underspend reported at month 4. 

2.3. Older People and Physical Disability services are forecast to underspend by £1.3 
millions. Reductions in client numbers experienced towards the end of last financial 
year remain at similar levels and are currently 362 clients lower than the budgeted 
level of 7,754. Average prices have seen a year on year increase for residential and 
nursing costs primarily because of the introduction of the new care fee model. This is 
offsetting the impact of lower client numbers and funding released from the 2017/18 
Better Care Fund revenue carry forward.

2.4. Sensory, Community Enabling, Social Care Reablement and other operational 
budgets are showing an underspend of £192,000. In-house services are forecast to 
underspend by £107,000 due to lower running costs and staffing vacancies. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



2.5. Learning Disability services are forecast to overspend by the end of the year by 
£868,000, an increase of £232,000 since month 4.  The numbers of clients are 
currently 124 higher than the budgeted level of 3,134.

2.6. Adult Commissioning and Health is forecast to overspend by £250,000 primarily due 
to increasing placements within Mental Health, some of which are more costly than 
average, particularly in residential care. Vacancies are also contributing to an 
underspend within Adult Commissioning.

2.7. Department of Health and Social Care has recently announced additional funding to 
support Adult Social Care in alleviating winter pressures on the Health Service. Devon 
County Council is to receive an additional allocation of £3.6 millions. While the grant 
determination details have yet to be issued it has been indicated that this funding 
should be spent on providing adult social care services in addition to funding already 
planned and that local NHS partners should be involved in these discussions and 
decisions. At this time it has been assumed that this fund will be fully spent in the 
current financial year.  

3. Revenue Expenditure Children’s Services 

3.1. Children’s Services are showing a forecast overspend of £9.9 millions, an increase of 
£1.2 millions from month 4. 

3.2. Children’s Social Care is forecast to overspend by £6.5 millions, an increase of £1.4 
millions from month 4. Pressures continue within residential placements but are also 
appearing across the disabled children short breaks service, social work teams and 
the Atkinson secure home. The forecast position reflects £672,000 of management 
action still to be delivered but which is assessed as achievable. 

3.3. The total overspending on children’s placements is forecast to be £4.6 millions. Within 
this the overspend on independent residential care and supported accommodation, 
including Exceptional Arrangements, has risen to just over £5.6 millions. Mainstream 
residential placements contribute £2.2 millions of this pressure, there are 38 budgeted 
full year effect (FYE) placements, the current forecast is 7 FYEs higher, and the 
average weekly cost is £364 more than the budgeted level of £3,735. Exceptional 
arrangement for supported accommodation contributes £2.3 millions to the pressures.  
These are low incidence high cost placements with 5.4 FYEs and an average weekly 
cost of £8,304. There is a partial offset from underspends against other placement 
types that total £1 million.

3.4. Disabled Children’s Services are forecast to overspend by £897,000. There are more 
packages of care and services being accessed by children and families than budgeted 
whilst average costs of packages have also increased.   

3.5. The Atkinson Secure Children’s Home is forecasting an overspend of £462,000. 
Difficulties recruiting and retaining appropriately experienced staff are having a direct 
impact on occupancy levels and therefore income. A recruitment plan has been 
implemented to address this. 

3.6.  All other costs which includes Staffing, Quality Assurance Reviewing and 
Safeguarding Service and strategic management budgets are forecasting an 
overspend of £541,000. The forecast reflects anticipated increases in agency staff 
rates and additional Northern and Southern team resources associated with the 
service improvement plan. 

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



3.7. The non-Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) element of Education and Learning is 
forecasting an overspend of £171,000 an increase of £55,000 from month 4. 
Pressures within school’s transport continue to exist.  Anticipated income through 
s106 contributions is expected to eliminate some of this overspend but the final values 
have yet to be confirmed.  

3.8. The DSG is currently forecast to overspend by £3.2 millions, a reduction of £250,000 
from month 4. This position includes management action that results in £2.4 millions 
carried forward to be delivered in the 2019/20 academic year.

3.9. The month 6 forecast position for the High Needs Block of the DSG following 
adjustment for the carry forward request is an overspend of £3.5 millions. Excluding 
the carry forward adjustment the overspend is £5.9 millions, an increase of just over 
£1 million from month 4 and primarily the result of additional costs within further 
education college placements and an increase in the number of pupils with Education 
Health and Care plans. Placement numbers for independent special schools remain 
the driver for most of the forecast pressure within the high needs block. 

3.10. When the month 4 budget monitoring report was produced it was not considered 
prudent to assume a carry forward request would be agreed as management action 
plans had not been developed fully. Since month 4 the Finance Sub-Group of the 
Devon Education Forum has been working alongside Council officers to agree 
proposals that will be put to the Forum when it meets in November.  Agreement is not 
guaranteed but seems likely and plans to address £2.4 millions of the pressure are 
now developed sufficiently for this carry forward to be included in the year end 
projection.

3.11. The DSG budget and the other DSG central budgets, that include central provision, 
Early Years and childcare, net to an underspend of £264,000 

4. Revenue Expenditure Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

4.1. Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste is forecasting a break-even position 
at Month 6.

4.2. Highways service managers remain confident that all planned maintenance 
programmes will be delivered during the financial year and that pressures associated 
with safety defects caused by adverse weather conditions at the end of last year are 
currently manageable. This will continue to be closely monitored and may be 
impacted by seasonal variations later in the year.

4.3. Waste tonnages continue to be close to budgeted levels resulting in a forecast spend 
in line with approved budget.

5. Revenue Expenditure Other Services 

5.1. Communities, Public Health, Environment and Prosperity (COPHEP) are showing a 
forecast overspend of £153,000 the result of the countywide research and intelligence 
review project. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



5.2. Corporate Services are forecasting a breakeven position at month 6. This position is 
dependent upon services still delivering management action totalling £65,000, but this 
is assessed as achievable. 

5.3. Non- service items are forecast to underspend by £1.4 millions.  This is mainly due to 
additional investment income of £192,000, a one-off underspend of £552,000 
associated with an estimate for remedial works being undertaken at Dartington School 
not fully materialising this year, the release of £302,000 of the schools improvement 
grant and a review of the pension contribution shortfall releasing £319,000. 

6. Capital Expenditure 

6.1. The approved capital programme for the Council is £149.6 millions.

6.2. The year-end forecast is £131.5 millions of which £110.8 millions is externally funded. 
Slippage is forecast at £18.0 millions.

6.3. Wherever possible slippage is offset by the accelerated delivery of other approved 
schemes within the capital programme.  The main areas of net slippage can be 
attributed to scheme variations and programme delays in Highways (£1.3 millions), 
Adult Care & Health (£2.9 millions) and Planning and Transportation (£6.7 millions) 
which reflects the complexity of the major schemes within these service areas.

6.4. The Autumn Budget Statement  also confirmed additional Capital funding for 2018/19. 
The Council is expecting to receive up to £4.0 millions additional capital funding for 
Highways and up to £5.2 millions for Schools.  Disabled Facilities Grants could 
increase by £800,000.

7. Debt Over 3 Months Old 

7.1. Corporate debt stood at £3.6 millions, being 2.2% of the annual value of invoices, 
against the annual target of 1.9%. We will continue to pursue the balance of debt 
owed, including the use of legal action where appropriate. It is anticipated that year-
end debt will be below the annual target.

8. 2018/19 additional savings initiatives 

8.1. In response to the forecast financial pressures the Leadership Group has proposed 
saving initiatives that will reduce expenditure by just under £5 millions. 

8.2. These initiatives range from introducing a process whereby recruitment to fill 
vacancies commences two months after a post holder has left employment, to the 
capitalisation of more revenue expenditure. Other initiatives include; cessation of non-
essential overtime, conference attendance, hospitality and travel and subsistence 
allowances unless externally funded.  

9. Conclusion

9.1. Like many other Local Authorities across the Country, the Council is now grappling 
with high levels of demand for Children Services.  Residential Placements are proving 
particularly difficult to contain within the budget allocated and pressures against the 
high needs block of the dedicated schools grant are challenging to manage.

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



9.2. The Councils Leadership Group has developed several savings initiatives detailed 
within this report which are estimated to reduce expenditure by almost £5 millions 
from that currently reported. Service managers within Education also continue to 
review options to deliver further reductions in expenditure within high needs.  

Mary Davis, County Treasurer                                                  

Electoral Divisions: All 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Stuart Barker 
                             

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers 

Contact for Enquiries: Mary Davis

Tel No: (01392) 383310 Room: 199

Background Paper Date File Ref: Nil

Date Published: 30th October 2018

Page 55

Agenda Item 8





CSO/18/32
Cabinet 

14 November 2018

NOTICES OF MOTION

Report of the County Solicitor

Recommendation: that consideration be given to any recommendations to be made to the 
County Council in respect of the Notices of Motion set out hereunder having regard to the 
relevant factual briefing/background papers and any other representations made to the 
Cabinet.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

The Notices of Motion submitted to the County Council by the Councillors shown below have 
been referred to the Cabinet in accordance with Standing Order 8(2) - for consideration, 
reference to another committee or to make a recommendation back to the Council.  

A factual ‘Briefing Note/Position Statement’ prepared by the relevant Head of Service is also 
included where appropriate or available, to facilitate the Cabinet’s discussion of each Notice of 
Motion. 

(a) Devon and Cornwall Police and Dorset Police Merger (Councillor Atkinson) 

Since 2015, Devon & Cornwall Police and Dorset Police (DC&D) have been working 
together through a 'Strategic Alliance'. Operational police departments such as 
Operations, Roads Policing and Prevention as well as 17 other business areas are 
already operating across the three counties with a further 11 departments currently 
going through changes which will see them aligned.

 
The Chief Constables of DC&D Police recently announced their intention to explore a 
voluntary merger of the two forces. There are no recent examples of successful 
voluntary mergers of police forces.

 
Work is now underway to develop a business case for the merger for submission to the 
Home Office in October 2018, with a decision expected in January 2019.

 
 The PCC commenced a public engagement programme across the three counties 

in August which ended on 28th August, the full business case  was not be shared 
with stakeholders or the PCP before the end of this consultation.

 It is understood that at a PCP meeting on 5th October some of the business case 
may be shared with the PCP before its submission to the Home Office.

 DCC had not formally been consulted and this has not been discussed at DCC 
cabinet or Scrutiny Committee

           
The proposed merger will impact funding and  on Council Tax across Devon A much 
higher proportion of Devon and Cornwall’s total funding (61.5%) comes from 
government. Only 53% of Dorset’s funding comes from government and a higher 
proportion comes from the police precept element. Overall, government funding is more 
per head for Devon and Cornwall (£103) than Dorset (£85). This would fall to £97.6 per 
head for a combined force. Having received minimal information regarding the financial 
impact or benefits of the potential merger, it is difficult to know whether current levels of 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



funding, alongside the substantial reserves held by both forces, would prove sufficient 
to underwrite any additional costs arising from the merger of the force areas. This is 
particularly relevant in attempting to understand how the additional 430 police officers 
or staff would be funded as a result of the merger At the moment, tax payers in Dorset 
in an average Band D property pay around £18 a year more for their policing than 
householders in Devon and Cornwall. Legally, the levels of police precept for both 
areas must be harmonised for the merger to take place. Will Dorset rates are 
harmonised down to the Devon and Cornwall level? This seems to have been ruled 
out.  Another proposal is that the rate for Devon and Cornwall will be increased to the 
Dorset level to fund extra police officers. The estimated increase would mean an extra 
payment of £1-3 per month (£18 per year) for average Band D residents in Devon and 
Cornwall. 

           

This motion proposes that the

 Council writes to the PCC to request that the full business case is sent to DCC for 
its comments before any proposal is submitted to the Home Secretary;

 Council opposes the merger on information it currently has available to it that it will 
mean an increase of £18 per year council tax for average Band D residents in 
Devon and Cornwall and writes to the PCC and if appropriate the Home secretary 
with its views;

 Council censures the PCC in relation to her consultation on the merger as the 
stakeholder consultation was carried out while important local authority 
stakeholders were in summer recess and without the business case being made 
available to stakeholders so that the no meaningful consultation could take place.

Briefing Note / Position Statement from the Chief Officer for Communities, Public 
Health, Environment and Prosperity

Members will be aware that the Devon & Cornwall Police and Crime Panel debated the 
voluntary merger of the two forces at its meeting on Friday 5 October and voted to 
support the Police and Crime Commissioner’s position that she was minded not to 
support the submission of the proposed full business case to the Home Office. The 
proposal to create a new force incorporating Cornwall, Devon and Dorset will therefore 
not progress further. The two police forces will continue to work closely together 
through the strategic alliance which was established in 2015 with 22 departments now 
shared by the two forces. The two forces remain committed to collaborative working 
and exploring opportunities to continue to improve service delivery to all communities.

                                                               
(b) Bed Poverty (Councillor Hannaford)

More children are living in poverty than at any other time in the past ten years, with 4.1 
million children across the UK living below the breadline.

Shockingly its thought that there are over 400,000 children in the UK who do not have a 
bed of their own.

Without somewhere to rest their head, bedtime routines become difficult, stress levels 
rise , and getting a good night’s sleep is often near to impossible.

Furthermore educational performance deteriorates and safeguarding risks rise.

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



Over the last five years, Dreams Beds has provided Buttle UK with nearly 10,000 
children’s beds to donate to those families in desperate need — more than ever before.

With the number of beds that they supplied during those five years rising by 77 per 
cent.

We applaud the work of this charity, and businesses, social enterprises, church groups, 
and others across the country in trying to tackle this national scandal.

As corporate parents with a duty of care to all of Devon’s children , we resolve that the 
council formally writes to The Rt Hon. James Brokenshire MP, the Secretary of State 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government,  and our local members of 
Parliament , to highlight this issue , and call for serious consideration to be given for a 
national grants scheme , that allows those in need to apply for help and assistance, to 
put an to end children’s bed poverty.

Briefing Note/Position Statement from the Chief Officer for Children’s Services 

In Devon, there is no recording or collecting of data on bed poverty specifically.  

Where families are experiencing serious financial challenges, the Council can, through 
its multi-agency early help system, support the family to access the services and 
resources they need. This would include supporting the parent to make applications to 
trusts and charities for essential furniture which could include beds and white goods 
(for example, fridges, washing machines and cookers).

The Council’s early help system includes all partners who come into contact with 
children and families, for example schools, early years, housing, children’s centres.

The in-sourcing of Public Health Nursing in April 2019 will give the Council 
unprecedented access to families of very young children which will help to ensure that 
the safety net to protect families experiencing poverty, including bed poverty, is made 
available at the earliest opportunity.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

This Report has no specific equality, environmental, legal or public health implications that will 
not be assessed and appropriate safeguards and/or actions taken or included within the 
detailed policies or practices or requirements in relation to the matters referred to herein. 

JAN SHADBOLT

[Electoral Divisions:  All]

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers
Contact for Enquiries:  K Strahan 
Tel No:  01392 382264 Room: G31 
Background Paper            Date     File Reference
Nil

Page 59

Agenda Item 9





DEVON AUTHORITIES STRATEGIC WASTE COMMITTEE
17/10/18

DEVON AUTHORITIES STRATEGIC WASTE COMMITTEE

17 OCTOBER 2018 

Present: -

Councillors A Davis (Chair), B Evans, D Mills, D Harvey, R Gilbert, R Sampson, T Wright and 
R Cann

Apologies:-

Councillors K Lake and C Eginton

* 27  Election of Chair and Vice-Chair

RESOLVED that Councillor A Davis and Councillor T Wright be elected Chair and Vice-Chair 
respectively for the ensuing year.

* 28  Minutes

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2018 be signed as a correct 
record.

* 29  Chair's Announcement

The Chair extended an invitation to Members to encourage entries and attend the Recycle 
Devon Thank You Awards for recycling on 22 March 2019 at 2pm at County Hall.

* 30  Recycling of Plastic - future collaboration

In accordance with Standing Order 23(2) Councillor Radford had asked that the Committee 
consider this item.

The Mid Devon District Council Officer on behalf of Councillor Radford asked about the work 
of this Committee relating to plastic waste products. The Chair enquired with the 
representatives of the Councils present on whether plastic waste was exported or dealt within 
the UK. The majority indicated that most waste plastic was treated within the UK through 
contract arrangements and some was exported within the EU. The representatives also 
reported on the range and extent of community forums throughout the Districts set up to 
promote a plastic free environment and minimisation of plastic waste.   

* 31  Waste Statistics 2017/18

The Committee considered the Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure 
Development and Waste (HIW/18/61) and received a detailed presentation on Devon’s Waste 
Statistics for 2017/18 with individual authority performance data. The headline statistics 
2017/18 (change from 2016/17) for Devon and Torbay respectively were:

Recycling Rate (Devon) 54.0% (-1.7%)
Waste Growth (Devon) -1.3%
Highest Performing WCA: Teignbridge at 55.4%.

Recycling Rate (Torbay) 42.6% (1.1%)
Waste Growth (Torbay) +0.5%

All district authorities (except East Devon and North Devon) and Exeter City encountered 
reductions in recycling performance generally due to reductions in ‘dry’ recyclables collected 

Page 61

Agenda Item 11



2
DEVON AUTHORITIES STRATEGIC WASTE COMMITTEE
17/10/18

via kerbside and banks.  Devon’s Household Waste Recycling Centres rate decreased by 
9.4% from 81.4% to 72%.  This was in the main due to the carpets and mattresses which 
were heavy items not having an economic outlet for recycling which therefore had to go for 
recovery or disposal.

The Report also detailed current service provision and plans and progress towards the 
‘aligned option’ in respect of the Waste Collection Authorities in Devon and Torbay.

Members noted that in West Devon recycling rates had reduced which could be attributable to 
reduced spending on education and campaigning and which was now expected to improve 
with service changes proposed by the Borough. The Chief Officer for Highways, 
Infrastructures Development and Waste suggested this as a case study on the relationship 
between decreased publicity and reduced performance.  

It was MOVED by Councillor Davis, SECONDED by Councillor Wright and 

RESOLVED 

(a) that the performance of the Devon local authorities and Torbay Council be noted;

(b) that a reduction of 1.3% in waste arisings in Devon be welcomed; and 

(c) that the reduction of 1.7% in the recycling rate for Devon to 54% be noted.

* 32  Budget Proposal 2019/20

(Councillor A Davis declared a personal interest in this matter by virtue of her membership of 
the Exmoor National Park Authority)  

The Committee considered the Report of the Chief Officer Highways, Infrastructure 
Development and Waste (HIW/18/62) on the proposed funding allocations for 2019/20 which 
totalled £182,800 covering: Re-use credits (£49,000), Don’t Let Devon Go to Waste 
(£41,000), Waste and Recycling Advisors  Contract (£85,000), a litter and fly tipping 
campaign (£6,800); and audit charges (£1000).  

The Committee received a presentation on the activities of the Waste and Recycling Advisors 
working on behalf of the Devon Authorities Waste Partnership.

Regarding ‘Litter and Fly tipping’ an allocation of £6,800 (which had remained unspent) had 
been made in 2018/19 and now a further £6,800 was proposed for 2019/20 to continue the 
work with partner bodies across the region to develop behavioural change and education 
initiatives. Preliminary discussions had been held with the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner; the Environment Agency; Dartmoor and Exmoor National Parks; Highways 
England; and the NFU, with respect to forming a collaborative partnership to “Clean Devon”.  
All these authorities were in favour of a partnership approach and a multi-agency meeting 
was being arranged with a view to embarking on a “Clean Devon” campaign in 2019/20. It 
was therefore proposed to allocate £6,800 to Clean Devon for 2019/20 and carry over the 
£6,800 from 2018/19 to give £13,600 to pump prime the contribution from this Committee to 
be made towards the wider partnership on the understanding that the other partners would  
allocate resource (noting that some would be by way of employee and other non-cash 
resources). 

It was MOVED by Councillor Davis, SEC0NDED by Councillor Cann and 

RESOLVED 

(a) that the proposed budget for 2019/20 and the extension of the Waste and Recycling 
Advisors Contract for one year be approved;
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 11



DEVON AUTHORITIES STRATEGIC WASTE COMMITTEE
17/10/18

(b) that the 2018/19 budget position be noted.

* 33  Hot topic - Ecowaste4food

The Committee received a presentation on the Ecowaste4food Project. This project brought 
together seven local and regional authorities from seven countries throughout Europe. Its 
ambition was to address the crucial issue of food waste in the supply chain, by sharing 
knowledge, experience and innovation across the partner authorities.

The presentation covered the Project’s objectives, the food and drink material hierarchy, UK 
food estimated waste (post farm) in the UK (amongst the highest in Europe), partnership 
projects across Europe, Action Plans, regional partnerships and programmes, reference to 
the UK Resource and Waste Strategy with a focus on food, and proposed solutions. 

* 34  Future meetings

20 February 2019, 19 June 2019, 17 October 2019 and 19 February 2020.

*DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT

The Meeting started at 2.15 pm and finished at 3.30 pm

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



Page 64

Agenda Item 11



1

Cabinet
14 November 2018

SCHEDULE OF CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE PREVIOUS MEETING
Cabinet Remit/Officer Matter for Decision Effective Date

Approval to the Council’s involvement with the Shadow Sub-National Transport Body (STB) for the 
South West Peninsula.

29 October 2018Infrastructure, Development 
and Waste

Approval to the progression of scheme design for a Lee Mill eastbound off-slip improvement. 1 November 2018

The Registers of Decisions will be available for inspection at meetings of the Cabinet or, at any other time, in the Democratic Services & Scrutiny 
Secretariat, during normal office hours. Contact details shown above.

In line with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014,  
details of Decisions taken by Officers under any express authorisation of the Cabinet or other Committee or under any general authorisation within the 

Council’s Scheme  of Delegation  set out in  Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution may be viewed at  https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/officer-decisions/

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 12

https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/officer-decisions/




1 
 

 

 
 

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL/CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 
 

 
 
 

In line with the public’s general rights of access to information and the promotion of transparency in the way which decisions are taken by or on behalf of the Council, Devon 

County Council produces a Forward Plan of any Key Decisions to be taken by the Cabinet and any Framework Decisions to be made by the County Council. The Plan normally 

covers a period of a minimum of four months from the date of publication and is updated every month.   

 

The County Council has defined key decisions as those which by reason of their strategic, political or financial significance or which will have a significant effect on communities in 

more than one division are to be made by the Cabinet or a Committee of the Cabinet.  Framework Decisions are those decisions, which, in line with Article 4 of the Council’s 

Constitution must be made by the County Council.  

 

The Cabinet will, at every meeting, review its forthcoming business and determine which items are to be defined as key decisions and the date of the meeting at which every such 

decision is to be made, indicating what documents will be considered and where, in line with legislation, any item may exceptionally be considered in the absence of the press and 

public. The revised Plan will be published immediately after each meeting. Where possible the County Council will attempt to keep to the dates shown in the Plan. It is possible that 

on occasion may need to be rescheduled. Please ensure therefore that you refer to the most up to date Plan. 

 

An up to date version of the Plan will available for inspection at the Democratic Services & Scrutiny Secretariat in the Office of the County Solicitor at County Hall, Topsham 

Road, Exeter (Telephone: 01392 382264) between the hours of 9.30am and 4.30am on Mondays to Thursdays and 9.30am and 3.30pm on Fridays, free of charge, or on the County 

Council’s web site, ‘Information Devon’, (http://www.devon.gov.uk/dcc/committee/) at any time. 

 

Copies of Agenda and Reports of the Cabinet or other Committees of the County Council referred to in this Plan area also on the Council’s Website at 

(http://www.devon.gov.uk/dcc/committee/mingifs.html)  

 

 

 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 13



2 
 

 

 

FORWARD PLAN 
 
All items listed in this Forward Plan will be discussed in public at the relevant meeting, unless otherwise indicated for the reasons shown 
 
Any person who wishes to make representations to the Council/Cabinet about (a) any of the matters proposed for consideration in respect of which a decision is to be 
made or (b) whether or not they are to be discussed in public or private, as outlined below, may do so in writing, before the designated Date for Decision shown, to The 
Democratic Services & Scrutiny Secretariat, County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD or by email to: members.services@devon.gov.uk 
 
 

 

PART A - KEY DECISIONS 

(To Be made by the Cabinet) 

Date of 
Decision 

Matter for 
Decision 

Consultees Means of 
Consultation** 

Documents to be considered in making decision County Council 
Electoral Division(s) 
affected by matter 

 

 Regular / Annual Matters for Consideration  

15 
February 
2019 

Admission Arrangements and Education Travel 
Review:  Approval to admission arrangements for 
subsequent academic year 
 

Schools, GBs 
and Phase 
Associations 

Formal 
consulation 
and  Devon 
Education 
Forum 

Report of the Chief Officer for Childrens Services  
outlining all relevant considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or impact 
assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

15 
February 
2019 

Target Budget: Target Budget:  Impact of the 
Provisional Local Government  Settlement for 
forthcoming year on the preparation of that year's 
budget and affirmation/re-affirmation of service 
expenditure targets 
 

N/A  N/A  Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

10 April 
2019 

County Road Highway Maintenance Capital 
Budget 
Update on current years programmes  and 
approval of schemes and proposed programmes 
for forthcoming financial year 

N/A N/A Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure 
Development and Waste  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 13



 
 

3 
 

   

10 April 
2019 

County Road Highway Maintenance Revenue 
Budget and On Street Parking Account 
Allocation of highway maintenance funding 
allocated by the Council in the budget for the 
current/forthcoming financial year 

N/A N/A Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure 
Development and Waste  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

 Specific Matters for Consideration  

14 
November 
2018 

Children's Services Placement Sufficiency 
 

TBC TBC Report of the Chief Officer for Childrens Services  
outlining all relevant considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or impact 
assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

14 
November 
2018 

Budget Monitoring: Month 6 
Approval of Month 8 Report and actions arising 

n/a n/a Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

12 
December 
2018 

Street Lighting Policy and Contract 
 

TBA TBA Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure 
Development and Waste  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

12 
December 
2018 

Review of Parking Exemptions for Care and Health 
Staff 
 

To be agreed 
with Social 
Care 
Commissionin
g Team 

Survey Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure 
Development and Waste  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

12 
December 
2018 

Accommodation Strategy 
 

  Report of the Head of Adult Commissioning and 
Health  outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

12 
December 
2018 

Adult Services Market Sufficiency 
 

  Report of the Head of Adult Commissioning and 
Health  outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

9 January 
2019 

Budget Monitoring: Month 8 
Approval to Month 2 Report and actions arising 

n/a n/a Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

15 
February 
2019 

Children and Young People Plan 
Approval to Children & Young People’s Plan for  
2018 onwards  

  Report of the Chief Officer for Childrens Services  
outlining all relevant considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or impact 
assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 13



 
 

4 
 

   

15 
February 
2019 

Moor Lane Roundabout, Exeter:  Junction 
Improvement Scheme – Scheme and Estimate 
Approval 
 

Neighbouring 
businesses 
and forums for 
the 
Sowton/Busine
ss Park area 

Letters to 
neighbouring 
Business and 
Sowton/Exeter 
Business Park 
Forums 
Online 
information on 
DCC ‘Have 
your say’ page 
Meetings with 
Local 
Business 
Forum 
(Sowton 
Forum and/or 
Exeter 
Business Park 
Travel Forum) 

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and 
Environment  outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All in Exeter; 
Heavitree & Whipton 
Barton; Wonford & St 
Loyes 

13 March 
2019 

Budget Monitoring: Month 10 
Approval of Month 4 Report and actions arising 

n/a n/a Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 13



 
 

5 
 

   

 

PART B -FRAMEWORK DECISIONS 

(Requiring approval of the County Council) 

Date of 
Decision 

Matter for 
Decision 

Consultees Means of 
Consultation** 

Documents to be considered in making decision County Council 
Electoral Division(s) 
affected by matter 

 

12 
December 
2018 
 
21 
February 
2019 

Heart of the South West - Local Industrial Strategy 
To approve the LEP Local Industrial Strategy 

TBC TBC Report of the Chief Executive  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

15 January 
2019 
 
14 
February 
2019 

Pay Policy Statement 
Recommendation to County Council in February of 
each year to approve, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Localism  Act  2011 of the 
Councils Annual Pay Policy Statement setting out 
its policy for each financial year relating to 
remuneration of Chief Officers and other 
employees and the relationship between the pay of 
chief officers and other employees 

Appointments 
& 
Remuneration 
Committee  

Public Meeting Report of the County Solicitor  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

15 
February 
2019 
 
21 
February 
2019 

Revenue Budget, Medium Term Financial  
Strategy & Capital Programme for next subsequent 
financial year and beyond 
 

Public, 
Stakeholders, 
Trades 
Unions, 
Business and 
Voluntary 
Sectors and 
public 

Statutory 
consultations, 
meetings, fora 
and public 
meetings, 
correspondenc
e and website 

Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 13



 
 

6 
 

   

 

PART C - OTHER MATTERS 

(i.e. Neither Key Nor Framework Decisions) 

Date of 
Decision 

Matter for 
Decision 

Consultees Means of 
Consultation** 

Documents to be considered in making decision County Council 
Electoral Division(s) 
affected by matter 

 

 Regular / Annual Matters for Consideration  

Between  
14 
November 
2018 and 
31 
December 
2019 

Standing Items, as necessary (Minutes, 
References from Committees, Notices of Motion 
and Registers of Delegated or Urgent Decisions) 
 

As necessary  Report of the   outlining all relevant considerations, 
information and material including any equality and / or 
impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

Between  
14 
November 
2018 and 1 
May 2021 
 
Between  
14 
November 
2018 and 1 
May 2021 

Standing items on the future management, 
occupation, use and improvement of individual 
holdings and the estate, monitoring the delivery of 
the Budget & the Estate Useable Capital Receipts 
Reserve in line with the approved policy and 
budget framework 
[NB:  Items relating to the letting or occupancy of 
individual holdings  may contain information about, 
or which is likely to reveal the identity of, an 
applicant for a holding and about the financial and 
business affairs of the Council and any prospective 
or existing tenant that may need to be discussed in 
the absence of the press and public] 

To be 
considered at 
the Farms 
Estates 
Committee, 
including any 
advice of the 
Council’s 
Agents NPS 
South West 
Ltd 

 Report of the County Treasurer, Head of Digital 
Transformation and Business Support  outlining all 
relevant considerations, information and material 
including any equality and / or impact assessments, as 
necessary. 

All Divisions 

12 
December 
2018 

Treasury Management Stewardship - Mid Year 
Position 
 

Corporate 
Infrastructure 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

N/A Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 13



 
 

7 
 

   

12 
December 
2018 

Devon Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 
2017/18 
To receive the Annual Report of the Devon 
Safeguarding Adults Board 

N/A N/A Report of the Chair outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

8 May 
2019 

Approval to Revenue & Capital Outturn, for the 
preceding financial year 
 

N/A N/A Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

10 July 
2019 

Treasury Management Stewardship Outturn 
Report 
 

Corporate 
Infrastructure 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

n/a Report of the County Treasurer  outlining all relevant 
considerations, information and material including any 
equality and / or impact assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

9 October 
2019 

Annual  Childcare Sufficiency Report:  
Endorsement  of Annual report outlining how the 
Council is meeting its statutory duty to secure 
sufficient early years and childcare places and 
identifying challenges and actions for the coming 
year in relation 
 

Interested 
parties and 
partners  and 
schools and 
parents 

 Report of the Head of Education and Learning  
outlining all relevant considerations, information and 
material including any equality and / or impact 
assessments, as necessary. 

All Divisions 

 Specific Matters for Consideration  

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 13



P
age 74

A
genda Item

 13


	Agenda
	7 Sufficiency Strategy (Children's Services)
	Sufficiency Stratgy Appendix 1 - CS/18/39
	Sufficiency Strategy Impact Assessment - CS/18/39

	8 Budget Monitoring: Month 6
	9 Notice(s) of Motion (Referred from Council 4 October 2018)
	11 Minutes
	Minutes

	12 Delegated Action/Urgent Matters
	13 Forward Plan
	Plan


